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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 181
h Annual General Meeting of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company 

limited will be he ld on friday, 061
h December 2024 at 16.30 hours at Bhubaneswar, Odisha to transact 

the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 
2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
;, resolution as Ordinary Resolution : 

lrl 

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 
31.03.2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors (both Statutory and Secretarial) 
thereon and the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon as circulated to the 

members, be and are hereby considered and adopted". 

2. Declaration of Final Dividend 

To declare Fin<ll Dividend of INR 0.40(forty paise) (at the rate of 4% percent) per equity share of RslO/­

each (Rupee Ten only) for the Financial year 2023-24 

in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT a Final dividend of INR 0.40(forty paise} (at the rate of 4% percent} per equity share 
of RslO/- each (Rupee Ten only} on the Equity Share Capital of the Company for the yea:· ended 31st 

march 2024, as recommended by Board, be and is here by declared 

3. To appoint a director !n the place of Shri Dilip Kumar Gupta (DIN: 08203085), who retires by rotation 

and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification (s}, the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions cf 
the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Dilip Kumar Gupta (DIN: 08203085}, who retires by rotation at this 

rneeting be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company." 

4. To appoint a director in the place of Shri Anurag (DIN: 10153033), who retires by rotat1on and being 

eligible, offers himself for re--appointment. 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification (s), t he following ,. 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution : ' / ': 

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies·Act, 2013, Shri Anurag (I)IN: 10153033),who retires by rotaJ:fGh at this meeti11g be and is 

rereby appointed a:; a Directorof the Company". 

5. To appo!nt c~ d1!'er.t'71r in the place of Shrl Ananga Charan Nayak (DiN: 10057433), v-.rho retires by 

r'otation ant1 bel:1g e!igH:;le, off~rs himself 1or re-appointment. 
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In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification (s), the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Ananga Charan Nayak (DIN: 10057433}, who retires by rotation at this 
meeting be and is hereby appointed as a Director ofthe Company". 

6. To note the appointment and fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2024-
25 

As per the provisions of section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (as applicable to the Company) 
appointment of statutory auditors is made by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India. Section 142 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 provides that, the remuneration of the auditor shall be fixed by the Company 
in General Meeting or such manner as the Company in General Meeting may determine. Therefore, the 
following resolution is proposed before the General Meeting: 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as Ordinary 
Resolution : 

"RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited be and is 
hereby authorized to fix, the remuneration of the statutory auditors of the Company appointed by the 
office of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for audit of accounts of the Company for the 
f inancial yea r 2024-25". 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

7. Appointment of Internal Auditor for a period of Three years subject to yearly review by the Board 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as Super 
Majority Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 138 of Companies Act, 2013, the consent of 
t he Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded for appointment of M/s Laldash & Co, 
Chartered Accounta nts as Internal Auditor for a period of three years (from F.Y.2024-25 to F.Y. 2026-
27) subject to annual review by the Audit and Accounts Review Committee/ any other Committee/ 
the Board with the professiona l fees of INR22,000/- per month plus GST. 

8. Amendment in pay and perksjProtection of Pay) of Shri Debaraj Panda, Managing Director of the 

Company, and in t his regard, pass t he following Resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolutions as 

Ordinary Resolutions: 

"RESOLVED THAT notwithstanding anything mentioned anywhere, the consent of the Shareholders of 

the Company be and is hereby accorded for protection of pay of shri Debaraj Panda,Managing 

Director (both Basic and Dearness Allowances) from the date of his joining" which shall be borne 

by the Employer i.e. HPRCL". 

"RESOLVED FURTH ER THAT Shri Saroj Kanta Patra, Director/HPRCL and/or Shri S.K. Satapathy, Company 
Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things 
and execute such other documents as may be necessary for giving effect to the above resolutions". 

DATE: 06/11/2024 
PLACE: BHUBANESWAR 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED 
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NOTES: 

1. Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide General Circular No 02/2021 dated 13.01.2021 permitted the 
companies for holding Annual General Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing {VC) or Other Audio 
Visual Means (OAVM) in the calendar year 2022onwards subject to the fulfillment of requirements as per 
the law. If required in compliance with the same and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the 181

h AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC also. 

2. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

3. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, and on a poll, to vote 
instead of him/herself. Such a proxy need not be a member of the company. Proxies in order to be valid 
and effective must be delivered at the registered office of the company not later than forty-eight hours 
before the commencement of the meeting. 

4. The members are requested to follow the following instructions in order to participate in the Meeting 
through the VC mechanism: 

a. The meeting will also be held on the "Microsoft Teams" platform. 

b. The link to attend the meeting will be shared through email separately. 

c. The members may attend the same by clicking on the link and joining through the browser or by 
downloading the app available in the play store. 

d. The facility for joining the Meeting shall be kept open 15 minutes before the time scheduled to start 
the meeting and 15 minutes after the expiry of the said scheduled time. 

e. Members attended meeting through VC are requested to contact Company Secretary through email/ 
over the telephone (e-mail at cshprcl@gmail.com or call at +91-8908357083) in case of any technical 
assistance required at the time of joining/ accessing/ voting at the Meeting through VC. 

5. The explanatory statements pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of items 
no 7 to 08 set out in the notice are annexed hereto. 

DATE: 06/11/2024 
PLACE: BHUBANESWAR 

AGM NOTICE 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED 

004 

_i ,l~ 
S.K.~~y 

COMPANY SECRETARY 

Page 3 



I 

~ 
[I 

I 
I 

II 

'II 
1:1 

I 
''I II: 
II: I! 
Ill 
!l· 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013. 

The following Statements pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") sets out all 
material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying Notice and should be 
taken as forming part of the Notice 
Item No: 2 • Declaration of Final Dividend 

The Board of Directors at its 76th BoD Meeting held on 12th September 2024, recommended a Final 
Dividend of ~.0.40/- (Rupees 0.40 paise only) per equity share of ~ 10/- (RupeeTen only) each of the 
Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 and the same, if approved at the AGM, will be paid in 
accordance with the timelines under the Act. The final dividend shall be paid to such shareholders 
whose names stand in the Register of Shareholders as beneficial owners as on the\Record Date. 
Shareholders are requested to get their KYC details updated with the Depositories for the shares held in 
demat form and with Link In NDML Limited, the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent ("RTA") for the 
shares held in physical form, so as to receive the final dividend for the financial year 2023-24, directly 
through electronic credit.[ll The Record Date for the payment of final dividend is close of business hours 
on September 30, 2024 ("Record Date").rn The Company is required to deduct tax at source from 
dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed rates. 

Item No 7: As per provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act 2013, Public Companies having paid 
up share capital of INRSO.OO Crores or more during the preceding financial year are required to appoint 
an Internal Auditor. Further, Clause 7. vi of Shareholders Agreement and Article 85. VI of the Article of 
Association of the Company stipulates that any proposal for the renewal or appointment of Statutory 
Auditors or Internal Auditors of the Company, including the replacement of such Auditors requires 
approval of the General Meeting. 
The Board of Directors recommended the appointment of M/s Laldash & Co. (FRN - 31147E), a firm of 
Charted Accountants as Internal Auditor for a period of Three year (from F.Y.2024-25 to F.Y. 2026-27) 
subject to annual review by the Audit and Accounts Review Committee/ any other Committee/ the 
Board with the professional fees of INR22,000/- per month plus GST. 

Subject to approval/ratification of/by Shareholders and passing of necessary resolution as Super 
Majority Resolution. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Persons, or their relatives have any interest in the proposed 
resolution. 

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends passing resolutions as set out in Item no. 07 of 
the Notice as Supermajority Special Resolutions. 
Item noS: Shri Debaraj Panda joined HPRCL as Managing Director in December 2020 after submitting the 
technical resignation from the position of Additional Member (Commercial) at the Railway Board, 
Ministry of Railways, before superannuating from the Railway Service. 

According to the advertisement and terms of his appointment, the pay and allowances are to be 
equivalent to those of a Director of a Schedule 'A' CPSE of the Government of India. After turning 60, 
pension is to be deducted from his pay and perks. 

At the time of joining, only his Basic Pay was protected. However, as per DPE guidelines and the practice 
followed at the Board and other levels for personnel transitioning from the CDA pay structure to the IDA 
pay structure, pay (including both Basic Pay and Dearness Allowance) should be protected, not just Basic 
Pay. Hence the Board of Directors of the Company ("the Board") at its 76th Meeting has, subject to the 
approval of Members, approved protection of pay (both Basic and Dearness Allowances) from the date 
of his joining by an amendment in pay and perks of Shri Debaraj Panda (DIN: 07101823), Managing 

AGM NOTICE Page 4 
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Director of the Company. 

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends passing resolutions as set out in Item No. 08 of 
the Notice as Ordinary Resolutions. 

Except for Shri Debaraj Panda, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and 
their relatives has any interest in the proposed resolution. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

II DATE: 06/11/2024 
II PLACE: BHUBANESWAR 
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STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS 
I. Generallnformation: 

1. Nature of industry: Railway Construction, Operation, Maintenance, and Management 

2. Date of commencement of commercial operation: 01st October 2020 

3. In case of new companies, the expected date of commencement of activities as per the project 
approved by financial institutions appearing in the prospectus:- Not Applicable 

4. Financial performance based on given indicators: Not Applicable 

5. Foreign investments or collaborators, if any: Not Applicable 
II. Information about the appointee: 

(1) Background details: Indian Railway Traffic Service officer (1982 Batch) 

(2) Past remuneration: 

(3) Recognition or awards: Not Applicable 

(4) Job profile and his suitability: Construction and Operation of project of the Company 

(S)Remuneration proposed: for protection of pay (both Basic and Dearness Allowances) 
from the date of his joining 

(6)Compa rative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the 
position and person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would be w.r.t. the country of his 
origin) N. A. 

(7)Pecuniary rel ationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with the 
managerial personnel, if any. Not Applicable 

II. Other information: 

1. Reasons for loss or inadequate profits : Not applicable 

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement: Not Applicable 

3. The expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms: Not Applicable 

Ill. Disclosures: 

1. The following disclosures shall be mentioned in the Board of Director's report under the heading 
"Corporate Governance", if any, attached to the annual report: Not Applicable 

a. All elements of the remuneration package such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension, 
etc., of all the Directors; 

b. Details of a fixed component and performance-linked incentives along with the performance criteria; 

c. Service contracts, notice period, severance fees; 

d. Stock option details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at a discount as well as the period 
over which accrued and over which exercisable. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, and their relatives are concerned or 
interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution except and to the extent they are members of the 
Company. 

DATE: 06/11/2024 
PLACE: BHUBANESWAR 

AGM NOTICE 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FOR HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED 
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Form No. MGT-11 
Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014) 

CIN: 

Name of the company: 

Registered office: 

Name of the member (s): 
Registered address: 
E-mailld: 
Folio No/ Client ld: 
DPID: 

U452030R2006PLC008959 

Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 

Unit No: DCB-714-17,7th Floor, DLF Cyber City Chandaka I.E, 
Bhubaneswar, Orissa-751024 

1/We, being the member (s) of ... ... ............ shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint 

1. Name: ...................... .. 

Address: E-mail id: ............ ........................ .. . 

Signature: ......................................................... ,or failing him as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) 
for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 181

h Annual general meeting of the company, to be held on the 
06.

1
h day of December 2024 at __ hours. at Bhubaneswar (Place) and at any adjournment thereof in 

respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Resolution No. 

1 ..... .................................. . 

2 ..... ........................ ......... . 

Signature of shareholder 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

AGM NOTICE 
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Stamp 

Signed 
this...... day 
of ••••••••• 2024 
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HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED 
Unit No.DCB.714-17,71

h Floor, DLF Cyber City, Chandaka Industrial Estate, Bhubaneswar -751024 
Cl N: U452030R2006PLC008959 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

DISTINGUISHED SHAREHOLDERS, 
Directors of your Company feel privileged to present the 18th Annual Report of the Company containing 
salient features of operations and business of your Company, along with the Audited Annual Accounts 
and the Auditor's report for the year ended 31st March 2024. 

1. FINANCIAL REVIEW & STATE OF AFFAIRS 
During the year under review, the Financial Statements of the Company for the F.Y. 2023-24 along with 
the comparatives of F.Y. 2022-23 are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 
2013, the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with applicable Rules as amended from time to time. 

Highlights of the Financials of the Company as on 31st March 2023 are as under: 
INR in Lakhs 

Particulars F.Y. 2023-24 F.V.2022-23 
Income from Operations (including Contract Revenue from 48,620.40 42,200.43 
Service Concession Arrangement and Works Contract Service) 
Other Income 1,072.41 809.96 
Total Income 49,692.81 43,010.39 
Less: Employee benefits, Operating, CSR, and Other expenses 19,596.47 19,172.38 
(including Contract Costs under Service Concession Arrangement) 
Profit/ (Loss) before Interest and Depreciation/ Amortization 30,096.34 23,838.01 
Less: Interest and Financial Cost 9,789.80 8,421.00 
Less: Depreciation and Amort ization 8,838.14 8,578.56 
Net Profit/ (Loss) before Tax and Exceptional items 11,468.40 6,838.45 
Add/ (Less): Exceptional items - -
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 11,468.40 6,838.45 

Add/ (Less): Taxes (net of credit) 3,526 .38 2,019.39 

Net profit after tax 7,942.02 4,819.06 

Other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes) 1.89 1.13 
Total Comprehensive Income 7,943.91 4,820.19 

A comparative position of Income from Railway Operations is mentioned below: 
INR in Lakhs 

Particulars F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2022-23 

Revenue from Railway Operations 45,745.13 35,055.82 

Less: Operation & Maintenance Expenses 16,075.81 11,684.18 

Net Income from Railway Operations 29,669.32 23,371.64 

Page 1 of 10 
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2. CREDIT RATING 
During the F.Y. 2023-24, M/s India rating assigned lnds A stable to the credit facilities availed by the 
Company. Further from the Balance sheet date and till the approval of report during the F.Y 2024-25 M/s 
India rating upgraded the rating assigned to lnds A+ with positive outlook. 

3. SHARE CAPITAL 
The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March 2023 is INR1, 50,000.00 lakhs. During the 
year under review, the Company has not issued any shares (in F.Y. 2022-23 also the Company had not 
issued any shares). The paid-up share capital on 31st March 2023 is INR1, 30,000.00 lakhs (Same as of 
31st March 2023). 

The Company has only one class of share i.e. Equity shares at par value of INR10/- each. 

4. DIVIDEND 
The Board of Directors of the Company in its 76th BOD meeting held on 1ih september 2024 
recommended to the shareholders a final dividend of INR0040 (fourty Paise only) per share on the equity 
share capital of the Company, for the year ended31st March 2024, out of the profits of the Company 
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing 18th AGM of the Company. 

5. CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS 
There were no significant changes in the nature of the business of the Company during the period under 
review. 

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
There were no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the company which 
has occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date 
of the report. 

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. BOARD'S COMPOSITION 
The Board is collectively responsible for the sustainable success of the Company under the leadership of 
the Chairman. The Company's . Board has an optimum combination of an Executive Director; Non­
Executive Directors nominated by Shareholders and Independent Directors. The same reflects the 
diversity in terms of discipline, professions, social groups, gender, and stakeholder interest. 

B. STRENGTH OF BOARD 
The strength of the Board as on 31st March 2024 is eleven (11) Directors, details of which are mentioned 
below: 

Sl. No. Name of Director Designation DIN Number 
1 Shri Chhatrasal Singh Chairman 10191997 

2 Shri Debaraj Panda Managing Director 07101823 

3 Shri Sanjay Kumar Mishra Non-Executive Director nominated by Govt. 09313483 
of Odisha 

4 Shri Polamraju Lakshmi Non-Executive Director nominated by PPA 07295378 
Haranadh 

5 Shri Dilip Kumar Gupta Non-Executive Director nominated by SDCL 08203085 
6 Shri Saroj Kanta Patra Non-Executive Director nominated by RVNL 08550153 

7 Shri Mritunjay Pratap Singh Non-Executive Director nominated by RVNL 08165734 

8 Shri Anurag Non-Executive Director nominated by RVNL 10153033 

9 Shri Saroj Kumar Sethi Non-Executive Director nominated by Govt. 08403701 
of Odisha 

10 Shri Bana Bihari Pani Non-Executive Director nominated by OMC 09119233 

Page 2 of 10 
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11 Shri Ananga Cha ran Nayak Non-Executive Director nominated by SDCL 10057433 

C. BOARD MEETINGS 
Fou r (4) Board meetings were held during the financial year ended 31st March 2024, details of which are 
as mentioned below : 

Sl. No. Particulars Date and mode of M eeting 
1 70th BoD Meeting oih June 2023 
2 71st BoD Meeting 21st August 2023 

3 72nd BoD Meeting 21st September 2023 through VC mode 

4 73 'd BoD Meeting 15th December 2023 through VC mode 

D. DETAILS OF ATIENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR IN THE BOARD MEETING DURING THE PERIOD FROM 
01sr APRIL2022 TO 31sr MARCH 2023 

I 

I 

51 No Name of Director Designation Held during Attended 
the tenure 

1 Shri Chhatrasal Singh Chairman 4 4 

2 Shri Debaraj Panda Managing Director 4 4 
3 Shri Gurudas Brahma Independent Director 3 2 

4 Smt. Gitanjali Mishra Independent Women Director 3 3 
5 Shri Sanjay Kumar Mishra, Non-Executive Director nominated 4 2 

by Govt. of Odisha 

6 Shri Polamraju L. Haranadh Non-Executive Director nominated 4 4 
by PPA 

7 Shri Dilip Kumar Gupta Non-Executive Director nominated 4 4 
by SDCL 

* 9 Shri Satyajit M ohanty Non-Executive Director nominated 4 3 
byOMC 

10 Shri Sa roj Kumar Sethi* Non-Executive Director nominated 1 1 
by Govt. of Odisha 

11 Shri Sa roj Kanta Patra Non-Executive Di rector nominated 4 4 
by RVNL 

12 Shri Mritunjay Pratap Singh Non-Executive Director nominated 4 2 
by RVNL 

14 *Shri Anurag Non-Executive Director nominated 4 3 
by RVNL 

15 Shri Manornjan Mallick Non-Executive Director nominated 3 3 
by Govt. of Odisha 

* Appointment/ Cessation of Directors during 015rApril 2023 to 31st March 2024 are mentioned above. 

E. CHANGES IN THE BOARD FROM 015r APRIL 2023 TO 31sr MARCH 2024 
F. 

Sl. Name of Director Designation ' Dat e of Dat e of 

No. Appointment Cessation 

1 Smt. Seema kumar Part-time Chairman - 10.05 .2023 

2 Shri Chhatrasa l singh Part -time Chairman 11.05.2023 -

3 Shri Satyajit mohanty Non-Executive Director nominated 31.12.2023 

byOMC 

4 Shri Bana Bihari Pani Non-Executive Director nominated 10.01.2024 -
byOMC 
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5 Shri Saroj Kumar Sethi Non-Executive Director nominated 04.12.2023 -
by Govt. of Odisha 

6 Shri Manoranjan Mallick Non-Executive Director nominated 06.11.2023 
by Govt. of Odisha 

7 Shri Ananga Ch Nayak Non-Executive Director nominated 12.04.2023 -
by SDCL 

8 Shri Gurudas Brahma Independent Director - 28.11.2023 

9 Smt. Gitanjali Mishra Independent Women Director - 28.11.2023 

G. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company are - Shri Debaraj Panda - Managing Director, Shri Susanta Kumar Satapathy - Company 
Secretary and Shri Navin Agarwal - Chief Financial Officer. There is no change in key management 
personnel during the F.Y. 2023-24. 

8. COMMITIEES OF THE BOARD 
The Board has constituted various sub-committees for the smooth and efficient functioning of the 
Company and is responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting, and fixing the terms of reference of the 
Committees in accordance with the provisions of AoA of the Company. The Chairman, quorum, and the 
terms of reference of each Committee have been approved by the Board. 

The draft minutes of the proceedings of each Committee Meeting are circulated to the members of that 
Committee for their comments and thereafter, noted by the respective Committee in its next meeting. 
The Board also t akes note of the minutes of the meetings of the Committees duly approved by their 
respective Chai rman and recommendations/decisions of the Committees are also placed before the 
Board for their consideration and approval. 

The brief details of the committee required to be constituted under the Act are mentioned below: 

Board of Directors at their meeting held on 15th December 2023 decided that since the Company HPRCL 

is joint Ventures Company, hence it is not required to have Independent Directors. Furthermore, for 

better corporate governance, the Board of Directors has constituted/reconstituted following sub 

committees/committees of the Board of Directors to discharge functions as decided by the Board of 

Directors: 

1. Audit & Accounts Review Committee 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Review Committee 

3. CSR Committee 

A. AUDIT & ACCOUNTS REVIEW COMMITIEE 

Objective 
The primary objective of the Audit Committee of the Company is to monitor and provide effective 
supervision of the management's financial reporting process to ensure accurate, timely, and proper 
disclosures with transparency, integrity, and quality of financial reporting. 

Audit & Accounts Review Committee Charter 
The charter of the Audit Committee is mentioned below: 
a. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient, and credible. 
b. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, and removal of the external auditor, 
fixation of audit fee, and also approval for payment of any other services. 
c. Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board, 
focusing primarily on: 

• Any change in the accounting policies and practices. 
• Major accounting entries based on the exercise of judgment by the management. 
• Qualification on draft Audit Report. 

Page 4 of 10 

012 



• Significant adjustments arising out of the audit. 
• The ongoing concern assumption. 
• Compliance with accounting standards. 

• Compliance with legal requirements concerning financial statements. 
• Any related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of material nature, with promoters or 
the management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc that may have potential conflict with the interest of 
the Company at large. 

d. Reviewing with management, external and internal auditors, adequacy of internal controls systems 
e. Reviewing the adequacy of the internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing, and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage, 
and frequency of internal aud it. 

f. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon. 
g. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there 
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and 
reporting the matter to the Board. 

h. Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences on the nature and scope of the audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern . 

Composition 

The composition of the Audit & Accounts Review Committee for the F.Y 2023-24 is mentioned below· 
Name of Director Designation Status 
Shri Dilip Kumar Gupta Chairman Non-Executive Director nominated 

by SDCL 
Shri saroj Kanta Patra Member Non-Executive Director nominated 

by RVNL 
Shri Saroj Kumar sethi Member Non-Executive Director nominated 

by Govt. of Odisha 

Attendance 

The Audit Committee held two meetings out of which one through video conference during the F.Y. 2023-
24 i.e. the 20th ACM Meeting and the 21st ACM Meeting held on 19th July 2023 and 11th August 2023 
respectively at the registered office of the Company. The details of attendance are as mentioned below: 
Sl. No Name of the Director Designation Held during the Attended 

tenure 
1 Shri Gurudas Brahma Chairman 2 2 
2 Smt. Gitanjali Mishra Member 2 2 

3 Shri Manoranjan Mallick Member 2 1 

The meetings of Audit Committee were also attended by the Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, 
Internal Auditor, and representatives of the Statutory Auditors as invitees for the relevant proceedings of 
the meetings. The recommendations of the Audit Committee are usually accepted and implemented by 
the Board. The Audit Committee also acts as a Vigil Mechanism under Section 177(9) read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Power) Rule, 2014. 

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION REVIEWCOMMITIEE 

Objective 

The purpose of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is to discharge the Board's 
responsibilities relating to the remuneration of the Company's Executive Directors and other Key 
Managerial Personnel (KMPs). The Committee has overall responsibility for approving and evaluating and 
recommending plans, policies, and programme relating to the remuneration of Executive Directors and 
other KMPs of the Company. The terms of reference of the Committee are mentioned below: 
a. To appraise the performance of the Managing Director & other KMPs; and 
b. To determine and recommend to the Board, compensation payable to Managing Director & other 
KMPs. 
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Composition 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists majority of Independent Directors. The 
composition of the Committee for the F Y 2023-24 is mentioned below· .. 
Name of Director Designation Status 
Shri Sanjay Kumar Mishra Chairman Non-Executive Director 
Shri Saroj Kanta Patra Member Non-Executive Director 
Shri Dillip Kumar Gupta Member Non-Executive Director 

Attendance 

The NRC held two meetings out of which one through video conference during the F.Y. 2023-24 i.e. the 
8th NRC Meeting held on 14th April 2023 through VC and ogth August 2023 ,the details of attendance are 
as mentioned below: 
Sl. No Name of the Director Designation Held during the Attended 

tenure 
1 Shri Gurudas Brahma Chairman 2 2 
2 Smt. Gitanjali Mishra Member 2 2 
3 Shri Saroj Kanta Patra Member 2 2 
4 Shri D.K. Gupta Member 2 1 
C. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITIEE [pursuant to clause (o) of Sub-section {3) of 
Section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014] 

Terms of Reference 
a. Formulate and recommend to the Board a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activity or activities to 
be undertaken by the Company as specified in schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013; 
b. Approve the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities; and 
c. Monitor and review the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time and make necessary changes. 

The Company has in place a CSR Policy duly approved by the Board on the recommendation of the CSR 
Committee which lays down the philosophy and approach toward CSR commitment. 

Composition 
The composition of the CSR Committee as of 31st March 2024 is mentioned below· 

Name of Director Designation Status 

Shri Debaraj Panda Chairman Managing Director 

Shri Saroj Kumar Sethi,IAS Member Non-Executive Director 

Shri Saroj Kanta Pat ra Member Non-Executive Director 

Attendance 
The CSR Committee held one meeting through video conference during the F.Y. 2023-24 i.e. the osth CSR 
Meeting held on 22nd November 2023 The details of attendance are as mentioned below· 

Sl. No Name of the Di rector Designation Held during the Attended 

tenure 

1 Shri Gurudas Brahma Chairman 1 1 

2 Shri Debaraj Panda Member 1 1 

3 Shri Saroj Kanta Patra Member 1 1 

Compliance with t he applicable provisions and rules therein 
The Company is to spend in every financial year at least 2% of the average net profits of the Company 
made during the three immediately preceding financial years in pursuance of its CSR policy. Where the 
Company fails to spend such amount, the Board shall in its report specify the reasons for not spending 

the amount. 

The Company spent the entire CSR expenditure meant for F.Y. 2023-24 and hence no amount is carried 
forward to the next financial year. The detai ls of computations as per section 198 and section 135 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 are mentioned below: 
INR in Lakhs 
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Particulars F.Y. 2022-23 I F.Y. 2021-22 I F.Y. 2020-21 

Net Profit as per Section 198 6725.37 1 6146.33 I 3,186.68 
Average Net Profit as per Section 135 5352.88 
2% of Average Net Profit as per Section 135 107.05 

Details of CSR Activities and Expenditure incurred during F.Y. 2023-24 are mentioned below: 
CSR amount (INR 1,07,05,767 /-) was contributed to all the three districts( i.e. Jajpur, kenderapara and 
Jagatsinghpur) in equal amount under "MO SCHOOL ABHIYAN PARICHALANA 
SANGATHAN/Transformation of Angawadi Center into Model Angawadi Centers" in the project Areas 
as suggested by the District Magistrates, in terms of provision contained in Schedule VII of Companies 
Act 2013. Annual Report on CSR activities during F.Y. 2023-24 is enclosed as Annexure-A 

D. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
During the year under review, the Company was not required to constitute a Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee under Section 178(5) ofthe Companies Act, 2013. 
9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
Shri Gurudas Brahma (DIN: 08476106) Reg. No: IDDB-DI-202002-012165 with IICA (Indian Institute of 
Corporate affa irs) Retd. Chief Operations Manager, ECo. Railway), and Smt. Gitanjali Mishra (DIN: 
08505160), Reg. No: IDDB-DI-202002-014622 with IICA (Indian Institute of Corporate affairs) Retd. 
General Manager, State Bank of India, were Independent Directors on the Board of the Company 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. Both the independent directors were ceased with effect from 28th 
November 2023 upon completion of their term. Furthermore, as per provisions of Section 149(4) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014, the Company exempt to have Independent Directors. In consequence of above 
circumstances there are no Independent Director on the Board of Directors at the end of the financial 
year. Therefore, the meeting of the independent directors was not held during the financial year. 

A. DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
The Board has received declarations from the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the 
cri teria of independence as la id down in section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and there has been 
no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as Independent Director of the Company 

during the year. 

B. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
The Independent Directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a year, without the 
attendance of Non-independent Directors and members of the management. The meeting shall: 
a. Review the performance of Non-independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
b. Review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of 

Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors; and 
c. Assess the quality, quantity, and t imeliness of the flow of information between the Company 
management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their 

duties. 

d. Both the independent directors were ceased with effect from 28th November 2023 upon completion 
of their term. Furthermore, as per provisions of Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 
4(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company exempt to 
have Independent Directors. In consequence of above circumstances there are no Independent Director 
on the Board of Directors at the end of the financial year. Therefore, the meeting of the independent 

directors was not held during the financial year. 

10.DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 w ith respect to the 
Directors' Responsibility Statement, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby states and confirm 

that: 
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a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b. the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view ofthe state of 
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for the 
year under review; 

c. the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
d. the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 
e. the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

ll.CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company will continue to uphold the true spirit of Corporate Governance and implement the best 
governance practices. It emphasizes transparency, accountability, ethical operating practices, and 
professional management. 

12.EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN 

The extracts of the Annual Return as at 31st March 2024, will be published at the company 
website:www.hprcl .com. 

13.SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES, AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate Companies. 

14.DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits} Rules, 2014. 

15.PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, OR INVESTMENTS 

During the year under review, the Company has neither given loans, nor given any guarantee or security 
to any person or Body Corporate, nor made any investment pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

16.SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS/ COURTS/ TRIBUNALS IMPACTING 
THE COMPANY'S OPERATIONS 

There are no significant material orders passed by the regulator/ courts which would impact the going 
concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

17.PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS WITH RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
During the year there were no new Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties referred to in Section 
188(1} of the Companies Act, 2013. Details of transactions with related parties during the year are 
disclosed in financial statements. 

18.COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING CRITERIA 

FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS,POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND 

OTHER MATTERS PROVIDED UNDER SUBSECTION(3) OF SECTION 178 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013. 

Except one post of Whole -Time Managing Director, all other Directors in the BoD of the Company are 
representative Directors (part-time non-executive} nominated by its Shareholders under provisions of 
Shareholders and Share Subscription Agreement. The Nominee Directors do not draw any remuneration 
from HPRCL. 

For appointment of Managing Director all terms and conditions i.e. mandatory education qualifications, 
relevant experience, positive attributes remunerations etc. are approved by the BoD directly/on the 
recommendations of MD selection Committee/NRC Committee, as per requirements of the Company. 
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The Board is of the opinion that, the project assets are adequately insured to safeguard the interest of 
the Company. 

20. ADEQUACYOF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial 
Statements. During the year under review, no reportable material weaknesses in the design or operation 
were observed. 

21. AUDITORS 

A. STATUTORY AUDITOR 

M/s P.K. Nayak & Co, Chartered Accountants were appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of 
India as Statutory Auditor of the Company for the F.Y. 2023-24. 

B. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

The Company had appointed M/s Saroj Ray & Associates, Bhubaneswar as Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company under Section 204(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

C. INTERNAL AUDITOR 

The Company had appointed M/s. Laldash &Co, Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor of the 
Company for the F.Y. 2023-24. 

22. AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Independent Auditor's Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, or adverse remark. The 
issues highlighted by them under "Emphasis of matter" are self-explanatory. The Independent Auditor's 
Report is an integral part of the financial statements (enclosed). 

A. The Company has maintained proper registers and records as per the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Secretarial Auditor's Report for the year ended 3151 March 2024 is enclosed as Annexure­
C to the Board's Report in this Annual Report. 

B. The Report of Statutory Auditors of the Company is received and circulated to the Shareholders along 
with notice of Annual General Meeting. 

23 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS, AND 
OUTGO 
The information pertaining to the conservation of energy, technology absorption, Foreign Exchange 
Earnings, and outgo as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 shall be treated as NIL as the Company is presently neither 
energy intensive nor technology intensive. 

24. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO ETC 
The Company has neither earned nor spent any foreign exchange during the period under review. 

25. SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION, AND REDRESSAL) 
ACT, 2013 
Since there is no women employee at the establishment, the Internal Complaints Committee under the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013 is not yet 

constituted. 

26. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards have been duly followed by the Company. 

27. DETAILS OF MONEY ACCEPTED FROM DIRECTORS 
During the period under review, the Company has not accepted money in the form of an unsecured loan 
from the directors or relatives of the directors of the Company. 
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28. FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12), OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE 
REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT. 

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

29. DETAILS OF APPLICATION/ ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY 
CODE, 2016 

Neither any application was made nor any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the financial year. 

30. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Directors of your Company acknowledge with a deep sense of appreciation the cooperation and 
support received from the Ministry of Railways (MoR), Government of Odisha, and other Government 
agencies and look forward to their continued support in the future. The Directors of your Company also 
convey their gratitude to M/s UCO Bank for the confidence reposed in the Company. The Directors place 
on record their appreciation for the officials of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for their 
guidance during the year under review. The Directors acknowledge the suggestions received from 
Statutory, Secretarial & Internal Auditors. 

Your Directors also acknowledge their deep appreciation for the unstinted support and contribution 
made by the management and employees in the working of the Company. Our resilience to meet 
challenges was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation, and support and the Board 
looks forward to the same in the future. 

Dated: 12.09.2024 

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ 
[ Debaraj Panda] 

Managing Director 
DIN: 07101823 
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SAROJ RAY & ASSOCIATES 
COMPAIIY SE C 

RE T ARI E S 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31sr MARCH 2024 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To 
The Members, 
Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited, 
Unit No.-DCB-714, 715, 716 & 717, 71h Floor, 
DLF Cyber City, Chandaka Industrial Estate, 
Bhubaneswar, Khordha, Odisha-751024. 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company 
Limited, {hereinafter called 'the Company' for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, 
we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on 31 51 March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited for the financial 
year ended on 31 51 March, 2024, according to the provisions of: 

{i) 

(ii) 

{iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), and the Rules made thereunder; 

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the'~ules made there 
under; (Not applicable during the audit period) 

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there 
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable during the audit period) 

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992('SEBI Act'):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Being an unlisted Public Company not 
applicable during the Audit Period); 
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b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Being an unlisted Public Company not 
applicable during the Audit Period); 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 (Being an unlisted Public Company Not applicable 
during the Audit Period); 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Being an unlisted Public Company Not 
applicable during the Audit Period); 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits 
ancl Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Being an unlisted Public Company 
not applicable during the Audit Period); 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non­
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Being an unlisted Public 
Company not applicable during the Audit Period); 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 (Being an unlisted Public Company not 
applicable during the Audit Period); 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021 (Being an unlisted Public Company not applicable 
during the Audit Period); 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 2018 (Being an unlisted Public Company not applicable 
during the Audit Period); 

(vi) The other laws as may be applicable specifically to the Company are: 

1. The Forest (Conservation} Act, 1980. 
2. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards 
(SS-1 & SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) . 

During the period under review, as per the explanations and clarifications given to us by the 
Management, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above except the following non-compliance. 

1. As per provisions of second proviso of Section 149(1) of Companies Act, 2013 read with 
rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, every 
public company having - (a) paid-up share capital of one hundred crore rupees or more; or 
(b) turnover of three hundred crore rupees or more: shall have at least one woman director. 
Further that any intermittent vacancy of a woman director shall be filled-up by the Board at 
the earliest but not later than immediate next Board meeting or three months from the date of 
such vacancy whichever is later. However, Ms. Gitanjali Mishra, Woman Director ceased 
with effect from 2f11' November 2023 and till the reporting date the intermittent vacancy has 
not yet filled. As per explanation provided to us, the Board of Directors are in the process to 
appoint a Woman Director on the Board of Directors. 
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2. As per provisions of Section 149 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 ~t;J?Ja~Whsh€!N . ·· ······ ····· 
paragraph 2.3 of SS-1, the independent Directors of the company shall hold at least one 
meeting in a financial year without the attendance of non-independent Directors and 
members of management. As per information and explanation provide by the management, 
the independent directors were ceased with effect from 2tf' November 2023 upon 
completion of their term. Furthermore, as per provisions of Section 149( 4) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with rule 4(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014, the Company exempt to have Independent Directors. In consequence of above 
circumstances there are no Independent Director on the Board of Directors at the end of the 
financial year. Therefore, the meeting of the independent directors was not held during the 
financial year. 

We further report that; 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Director and Non-Executive Directors, except above non-compliances. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that; 

During the period under review, the company has taken following action, which has a 
major bearing on the status and affairs of the Company: 

As per information and explanation provided by the management, The Board of Directors at 
their 73rd Meeting held on 15th December 2023 noted the cessation of Shri Gurudas Brahma 
and Smt. Gitanjali Mishra, Independent Directors of the Company with effect from 28th 
November 2023 (AIN) on completion of their tenure. Further as per information provided by 
the management, the Company is a Joint Venture. Therefore, as per decision of the Board of 
Directors at their meeting held on 15th December 2023, the Company is not required to have 
Independent Directors. Furthermore, for better corporate governance, the Board of Directors 
has constituted/reconstituted following sub committees/committees of the Board of Directors 
to discharge functions as decided by the Board of Directors: 

1. Audit & Accounts Review Committee 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Review Committee 
3. CSR Committee 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date: 051h August, 2024 

For Saroj Ray & Associates 
Company Secre s 

CS am Bar I, ACS 
Partne 

M. No. 67653, P No. 2609 
PR No. 5377/2023 

UDIN:A067653F000896118 

(This report is to be read with our fetter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report) 
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To 
The Members, 
Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited, 
Unit No.-OCB-714, 715, 716 & 717, 7111 Floor, 
DLF Cyber City, Chandaka Industrial Estate, 
Bhubaneswar, Khordha, Odisha-751024. 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

Contlfi!J.ittlOG. Shc•et Annexure Po · · · · · • · · · · · .. · · · 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial 
records. The verifications were done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, followed 
by the Company provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have .not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
Books of Accounts of the company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date: 051h August, 2024 

For Saroj Ray & Associates 

Compa. n~J-~S.ecre ies 

CS Uttam ~ar: I, ACS 
l9fFc9frf,).0 
Partne 

M. No. 67653, CP No. 26090 
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HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED 
Unit No.DCB.714-17,ih Floor, DLF Cyber City, Chandaka Industrial Estate, Bhubaneswar -751024 

CIN: U452030R2006PLC008959 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE F.Y. 2023-24 TO BE 
INCLUDEDIN THE BOARD'S REPORT 

Sr. No. Particulars Remarks 
1 A Brief outline of the Company's CSR CSR policy ofHPRCL is approve by the Board of 

policy, including overview of projects Directors of the Company in compliance to the section 

or programs proposed to be 135 and Schedule VII of Companies Act 2013, and rules 

undertaken and a reference to the web- framed thereon. 

, link to the CSR policy and project or -
programs. 

2 The Composition of the CSR Shri Debaraj Panda- Chairman (Managing Director) i Committee. Shri Saroj Kumar Sethi - Member (Director) 

I Shri Saroj Kanta Patra- Member (Director) 

3 Average net profit of the Company for TNR 53,52,88,333 ! 
last three financial years. I 

I 

I 
' 

4 I Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per INR. I ,07,05,767 I 
! .l cent. of the amount as in item 3 above). I 

i 

5 I Details of CSR spent during the I 

financial year: I 

a) Total amount to be spent for the TNR.I ,07,05 ,767 ' I 
I 

financial year 
I 

I 
b) Amount unspent, if any; 

Nil 
j c) Manner in which the amount -

spent during the financial year is ! 

detailed below I 
I 

____ _j 

(1) (2) (3) (4) Cs) (6) (?) (8) i 

SI. cs Sector in which the Projects or Amount Amount Cumula Amou 
----1 

m t 
No R Project is covered programs outlay spent on tive spent 

pro (1) Local (budget) the expendi Direct 
ject area or project or projects ture throu 
or other programs or upto to imple 

i 
g~ I 
me I 

acti (2) !wise program the nting 
vity Specify s Sub- reporti agenc y I 

Identifi the State heads: ng 

I ed. and 
district 

I 
where 

I projects 
or 

I program I 

I 
swas 

undertake 
n 

i 
(1) Direct 

expenditur 
eon 

j projects 
or 

I 

progra 
ms(2) 

Overhead 

period 

I 

~\9 .... 
4.. 

~ '"\l 

: 
i 

! __ _,__ __ ,j_ _______ _ I 

023 



.. 

UPitCJ. 

~ 
1 Schedule *CSR amount of(!NR - INR.I ,07,05 ,76 - - INR.I,07,05,7 

VII (ii) I ,07,05 ,767/-) equally 7 67 
contributed to all the three 
districts (Jajpur, Kendarapara 

I and Jagatsinghpur) under "Mo 
I school abhiyan parichalana 

sangathan" I and Health 
care initiatives 
lt"Transformation of 
aganganwadi center 
into model 
aganganwadi centers in 
he project Areas as suggested 

by the District Magistrates. in 
erms of provision contained in 

Schedule VII of Companies Act 
2013 

TOTAL - - I ,07 ,OS, 767 - - I ,07 ,05 ,767 
I 

*G1ve detmls of 1mplementmg agency: 

1. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three 
financial years or any part thereof, the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report. 
Nil 

2. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR 
Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company. 

(Managing Director) Director 
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;·':~~~~, I!aridasput· /Y{.U'c:t. dt/7 Raif11vay Company J.irnited 
(¢A, · ''>· C!N: U452030R2006PLC008959 

_,1· ·:.~:.,.~;" l ,· ;g ~~ ... ~IL :\ 1- .l :i.~ OX ,&."'!'"X ..::~''-::"41:--.:..~.r..r~r ".::=.k !.!::Z . ..x~~~M'tl'lld .. :'mfk·~'!mi~~ 

-t~~ .. :~.-: BALAl',rCE SHEET AS A.T l\1ARCH 31, 2024 (tNR in LakhsJ 

[,~~-;::~: .. -~-·····~-~- -~ ~ -_ ~· --~ . ~~ : r •;: •• _ --~~3~~~:.:,f~ 2~,~=L= - _,~$~:~;~ 2023 -=:] 
1
1 Non-Current Assets ~-

1 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 22 .98 29. 12 
(b) Right of use assets 4 15.07 37.67 

1 (c) Other Intangible Assets 5 2,35,592.72 2,39,885.66 

I (d) Intangible Assets Under Development Sa 169.11 
(e) Financial Assets 6 

(i) Others 6.1 1,396 .92 1,269.68 
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 8 3 ,645.57 2,40,842.37 4,752.67 2,45,9"/4.80 

Current Assets 
(a) Financial Assel:; 9 
(1) Trade Receivables 9.1 14,904.74 6,978 .36 
(ii) Casr1 and Cash Equivalents 9.2 6,046 03 4 ,220.84 
(iii) Bank ba lances other than (ii) above 9.3 6 ,010 .00 7 ,068 .80 

I (iv) Others 9.4 180.96 136. 73 
I (b) Current Tax /\ssets (l'llet) 10 93 .85 210.46 1 

1 .• ~ ~~rc:;_u!rel~l,'\s~e~? ________ . ···- __ __ ______ _ ___ -~ 1 _______ 2~_~2_~----- ~7,480_2Q_ _______ ____ ~7 1 }J_ ____ ~~6-~_? ___ J 

L -- -~~~~~"s~-'~- ___ _ ___________________________ _______________ 2~~~.32~s-~---- ____________ ____ __ _3~~,861~~- 1 

II! EQUITY AND UASILITIES 

11 Equity 
I (a) Equity Share Copitai 

I (b) Ot11e1· Equity 

2 Liabilities 
i(i) Non-current liabi lities 
i (a) 1-in:mr;ial Liabil ities 

li) Borrowing 
(ia) Lease L;abilit'cs 
(ii) ;·r£Jj ~! Payables 

a) '.oial Ouist;:;nding Due !o rvl icm 1 
ente :· t:,rise~; ;:~de! sm<lil enterpri !;m~ I 
rJ)T•::Ia; Ol.dSi,:ll lj ing Due lo crcditor·s other 
Hwn ;IJiJcro c:l\erpriscc; <1n ,j srnali e1 1le1·pri ses 

(b) Provisions 

i 
(c) Dnffered Tax liabli;tics (:-Jel) 

;(ii) (>.ment Liabilities 
(s) Fin2.1nc;i;; l l.iabi~ities 
(i) Burrowinu 
(ia) Lr:ase Liat;;lities 
(ii) ·r race P<:i);t;r_;:es 

ci)Tclal OLit!; ta n ci n [~ Due to fJiicro 
enterp:~scs <lllO sn ;;; !I enl~! rpri ses 1 

b)"lo ial Outstanding Due to crccli !ors other I 
than Micro enterprises and smal l enterprises!! 

(i ii ) Other Fina ncial L.iabii ities 
(b) Other Current Liabili i ies . i 
~c) Prrjvis ions ! 

I ! . - - ... 
i _ r~:t~; Equi_t ;,_and L ~bi l i ti~~~ _ 
::il. ~>er~ accol!lpsnying r ; olt~s t:J tlw fi :;:;;nc i:o i s:~Herne ~ ·~ t~ 
! ·-- --- - - -
As per our l~e!JOrt oi even ci<'.tv <Jttacl·•ca 

For PK Nayak & Co. ( FR~~ No. 3181(;5E) 
Chartered Account=.nis 

~ ~~4u;La_ 1('-<~ ~~ 
CA S.K. Sahoo 

fvl<~miJers h i p No. OGO:io8 

Uui;J. ?..4b6oSg~ BK.~eD&,~~"f 
Place: Bhu~aneswa r-

Date : ·J2''J Sept 2024 

.. 

: 
! 

12 1,30,000.00 1 ,30,000.00 
13 17,03 "1.28 1,47,031.28 9,087.35 1 ,39,087.35 

14 
14 .1 1 '13,202.89 1.20 ,002.89 
14.2 

16.3 
17 

18 I 

-· ! --

r·~ote 1 to 52 

22 91 
42 .28 

4.35 

17.59 

I I 
j 1,1 01130 1 

I 16:U7 I 
i 13 ."10 I 

;>"114 I , .3o:345 ·- ---- -----· 1-------- ---------- -- -------- ----·- --· 
:!,58, 322.67 · 2,64,861 .30 1 

( ______ --------- - .. --- - --- .... " \ 

! 

For and o n beha!f of Ha ridaspur Paradip Railwoy Company Lin·.ited 

~ 
Dcbaraj Panda 

Managing Di recto r 

DIN 07 101 8~3 
o.ff, "() ' . ~in A garvJa 

if. 

Page 1 of 44 
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I Jaridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CIN : U452030 R2006PLC008959 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

Particulars- ·-· -------- -------,----1\!-o-te­

No. 
1-Reven~- --------- --- -------------

Revenue from operat ions 19 
II Other income 20 
Ill Total Income (I + II) 
IV Expenses: 

Other operating cost 21 
Employee benefit s expenses 22 
Finance costs 23 
Depreciati on and amorti zation 24 
Other Expenses 25 
Total Expenses (IV) 

V Profit/loss Before exceptional items and Tax (Ill - IV) 
VI Exceptional items 
VII Profiti(Loss) befo re tax (V - VI) 
Vi i IT ax expense: 

( 1) Current tax 
- For the year 26 
- For earl ier yea rs (net) 

(2) Deferred tax (net) 
IX Profit/(loss) for th e period from continuing 

operation (VII - VIII) 
X Profitl(loss) from discon tinued operations 
XI Tax Expense of d:scontinued operations 
Xil Profit/( loss) from discontinued operations 

(after tax) (X-XI ) 
XIII Profit/(loss ) for the period (IX+XII) 
XIV Other Comprehensive Incom e 

A. (i) Items tha t wil l not be reclass ified to profit 27 
and loss 

(ii ) Income Tax rela ting to Items tha t wi ll not be 
reclassi fi ed to profit and loss 

B. (i) ll erns that wi ll be reclass ified to profi t and loss 
(ii) income Tax rt: lating to Items that will be 

;;::cia~sifred to profi t and loss 
XV Total Coi11 prc hens ivc inc ome for th e 

1 per:od (XIII +XIV) (cornpr-ehensivc pro f it and 
other comprehensive income fo r the period) 

XVI t::arn ings Per Equ ity Sh<:1re: (lr. lNR) 
(For Continuing Operatr on) 

I 
(1) Basic (Face Value INR1 0 Per share) 28 
(2) Diluted (Face Value IN R1 0 Per share) 28 

XVII Earnings Per Equity Share: (In INR) 
(For disconti nuing Operation ) 
(1) Basic (Face Value INR1 0 Per share) 
(2) Diluted (Face Value INRiO Per share) 

XVIII. Earn ings Per Equity Share: (In INR) 
(For discontinued and continu ing Operation) l 

(1) Basic (Face Value INR10 Per share) 28 
(~iluted ( F~~Va l u~_ ~f\!_1:3_1Q_£'~_r:__~h~~e_) ______ _2i3_ 

(JNR. in Lakhs except EPS) 
'FOr-th e yea r ended 31st For the year ended 
March 2024 31st March 20223 

48,620.40 42,200.43 
1,072.41 809.96 

49,692.81 43,010.39 ---
18,951 08 18,828.79 

153.04 150.25 
9,789.80 8,421.00 
8,838. 14 8,578.56 

492.34 193.34 ---- --
38,224.40 36,171.94 
11 ,468.41 6,838.45 

- -

11 ,468.4 1 6,838.45 

- -
- -

3,526.37 2,019.39 
7,942.04 4,819.06 

-
- -
- -

----- - -
7,942.04 4,819.06 

----
2.53 1.51 

(0 64) (0 .38) 
-

- ~ -------- ___________ _: _______________________ _: __ ) 
7,943.93 4,820.19 I 

---- ----- -·--· - --- ~-------·---- ---, 

0. 61 0.37 
0.61 0.37 

- -
- -

0.61 0.37 J 
0 ~~_] ____ ____ 0.37 

Notes to Financial Statemen ts forms integra l part of the above statement 

For PK Nayak & Co. (FRN No. 3181 55E} 
Chartered 1\ccounlarrts 

CA S.K. Sahoo 
Partner 
Membership No. 060588 

UDIN- ":l.4D b05gg J:?,\( ~£:"]) 6l. ..::l..-4-"~ 

Place: Bhuhaneswar 
Date : 12"' Sept 2024 

..,_. 

For and on behalf of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
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Deb~ 
Mana!) ing Director 

DIN 07 101823 

~~.~· 
Chief Financial Officer 

~~ 
Saroj Kanta Patra 

Director 
DIN 08550153 



(~,~\ Haridaspur /)aradip RaiLway Company Limited 
~ CIN U452030R2006PLC008959 

laiii:SLJS.::....a-;.L. :.a ~~~......_ .&.liJH...&' -J:~,~ =rz.nt\JMijffilJ!r ··, -S~sa:.~•-Mll!.••;nr;;;• . ...liiiEtE"iP"P'il'Fit• • 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2024 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Profit before taxation 
Adjustment for : 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Unwinding of discount on Security Deposit 
Unwinding of discount on receivable from SCR 
Interest income 
Interest on Term Loan 
Interest on !..ease Liabili ty 
Loss/(Gain) on Disposa l of Fixed assets 
Expense of reversal of discount on Security Deposit 

--- -

-----

(INR in Lakhs) 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

11 ,468.41 6,838.45 

33.86 34.14 
8,804.28 8,544.42 

(1 .25) (1.14) 
(125.72) (114.29) 
(938 .79) (694 .53) 
9,276.54 8,4 13.55 

4.24 6.49 
0.08 -
1.25 1.25 

---
Operating Profit before working capital changes _ 1!l__ 28,522.90 ------~,028.~ 

Adjustment for : 
(inc,·ease)/Decrease in f..Jon -Current Financia l Asset 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other· Non- Current Assets 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Current Financia l Assets 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Cu rrent Liabilities 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Provisions 
lncrease/(Decrease) in Receivab les 

Cash generated from operation 
(II) 

(1+11) 

(0.27) 
16.23 

(1 0.00) 
26.59 

(1 ,078.89) 
(121.49) 

18.12 

(7,926.38) 

(9 ,076.09) 

19,446.81 

-
(63 .25) 

(0.87) 
(0.27) 

(114.90) I 
(16.19) 

12.17 

(1 ,501 '13) 

(1 ,684.44) 

21,343.90 
Income Tax Paid 

(24.1~1-- - __lZQJ].l_ 
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

1-- ------------------------------------- - --

1 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Increase in F-' roperly, Plant and equipment 

· Increase in Intangible assets un der development/Intangible 
assets 
Change in Capita l Advances 
Sale of Fixed Assets 
Cha nges in Other Bank 8CJ iances 
ln ierest Income 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIViTIES 
CASH FLOW FRONi FINANC INQ ACTIVITIES 
Increase in Borrowing I Payment 
Issue of Eq uity Shares 
Payment of Lease Liabi lity 
Interest on Term Loan 
Interest on Lease Liab il ity 

(A) 
-----

- - - -
(B) 

~nl~_r:!_m_~_l:0-~_n_9_~a_!9~~J_ring the_y_ear _ ___________ _ - --- ·----
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ·----- - ---· ---------------- -· --- ---- --~--·-------~) __ 

19,422.65 21,273.63 
----------- -

(5.38) (9.96) 
(4 ,680.45) (8,326 .21) 

1,230.39 (2, 111 .01) 
0.18 -

1,058.80 (344.28) 
904.56 651.91 

- · -·--- - ---- ----c.-

- ·--·- -
(1,491 .90) ~!~:.1 _~~~~L 

(6 ,800 .00) -
- -

(24. 78) (22.53) 
(9,216.54) (8413.55) 

(4.24) (6.49) 
- (1 ,560.0QL - --

---- _ _ {_!_~, 1 05.56) f------ - J.'I_Q_,_Q02.57).__ 
NET INCREASE lDECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 

l
.c"Asf-iANocAsH "EouiVAL-ENT (oPENir~ci) ____ -------

_ (A+~-~Lr _____ _ 1_, 825 . 1~- - 1,137.51 

(D) 4,220.84 3,083.33 

I 
(Refer Note 9.2) 
Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks: 
On current accounts 
Fixed Deposits havin~ original Matur·ity of three months or less 

027 

(E) 

---- ---- ~-----
_ (E-E?L _ _ ___ 

4 ,2 20.84 
0.72 

205.1 2 
4 ,015.00 

6,046.03 
6,046.03 

0.1 1 

95.92 
5,950.00 

1,825.1 9 

3,083 .33 
0.43 

275 .90 
2,807.00 

4,220.84 
4 ,220.84 

0.72 

205.12 
4 ,015.00 

1,137.51 

Contd. 

I 

I 
! 



.. 

/ _;'c:--
' :.:J,. • .' .,_ I 

1 ~"' 1 
~ 

Ilarida .. ;.,pur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CIN: U452030R2006PLC008959 

Cash Flow ...... Conte/. 
(i) The company adopted the amendment to lnd-AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable 

users of financial statements to eva luate changes in liabilities arising from fin ancing activities, including both 
changes arising from cash fl ows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the 
open ing and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities aris ing from financing activities, to meet the 
disclosure requir·ement. Detai l of the same are given below:-

(ii) Reconciliation of Liabili ties arising from financing activities as at 31st March 2024 (INR in Lakhs) 

r :::~:~~~~~,, ~~~~~-,~23~~-~ -

Lease 
Liabilities 

Borrowings Share Capital 

----- ------- -------------\-- --------1 

I Adoption of lnd_AS-116 

Cash flows:­

-Repayment 
-Proceeds/Movement 

Non-Cash:-

42.38 

29.03 

1,20,002.89 1,30,000.00 

(6,800.00) 

- Fair Value 4.24 - ~ 

-Additions to right of use assets in _ 
exchange for increased lease liabili ties 1 

~:a~~u:~::_c~1~~~~c_h2 _~ol~~~-=~~L--=.=- 1 ~~;=- ~-- -----1~~2~~~=----------1-,3-o-,o-o_o ____ o_o __ ____ :__:___ ___ _ 
Reconciliation of Liabilities arising from financing activities as at 31st March 2023 (INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars r 
1

------------- ------- -------- ------· - - ---- , 

II' ~:~;,;:,~:;,~:~~:p;~'; 2022 ... - - .• -

Cas h flows:-

/ 

-R epayment 
-Proceeds/Movement 

Non-Cash:-
- Filir Value 

-Additions to right of use assets in 
exchange for increased lease liabilities 

-Adjustments 

Lease r- Bo~rowings J Share Capital 

__ '-:i~tJ_~i_ti_e_s ______ · ____ --- - ------------- -------------· 

I 
64.91 I 1,20,002. 89 1,30,000.00 

29.02 

6.49 

I 
- I 

i_~lan_~_<~__s_a~~-'1_9 t_!'Jlarc~.-~~~- _ _______ ____ 42_2~ _ 1,20,002 ,8~ 1-------1,30,00~ 
Notes to Financial Statements forms integral part of the above statement 

PK Nayak & Cc . (FRN No. 3181 55E) 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 

~ 1...--U~~td .el k. ...... ..,.,,.y ~d) 
CA S.K Sahoo 
Partner 
Membership No .060588 
FRN No. 318 155E 

U DIN- ::l...4 C1 6o ,!;' 88- 12> \.( 1?,-f:: ~ 61-.:1.. 44 t 
Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date : 12u' Sept 2024 

Deba~a 
Managing Director 

DIN 07101823 

tt:~~ 
Chief Financial Officer 
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Saroj Kanta Patra 
Director 

DIN 08550153 

_i,~ 
S.K ~a~~hy_) 

Company Secretary 
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~;~ Harida~j7Ur Paradip Radway Company Lim,ited 
~ CIN : U452030R2006PLS008959 

ED. -· -·· ·=~ :=;::r;· • . ~·:.DI--::11111---1'1.81--IIID--

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 3pt March 2024 

A. Equity share~apital_ 

Particulars 
--

No. of shares 
(in lakhs) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Amount 

1-------- -------------· ----
Balance at April 1st, 2023 13,000 .00 1 ,30,000.00 
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting peri od 

Changes in equity share cap ital during the period 
13,000.00 

-
1,30,000.00 

-

(a) issue of equity shares capital during the period - -
-

Balance at 31st Mar 2024 13,000.00 1,30,000.00 
- - --·-- __ ,_,_ --- ---·-------------

B. Other Equity 

Particulars 

Balance at the beg inning of the reporting 
period 

Changes in accounting po licy or prior period 
errors 

Restated balance at the beginning of the 
repo rting period 

Profit for the period 
Other Comprehensive income for the period 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

Dividends paid 
Received uuring the period 
Share al lotted duri ng the period 

Balance ai the end of the report ing period 

Share Application 
money pending 

a llotment 
----

-

-

-·-------

-

-

-
-··- --------- -

-
-

-
-

------- -----

-
. -------------

(INR in Lakhs) 

Reserve & Surplus 
Total 

Retained Earnings 

9,087 .35 9,087.35 

- -

-

9,087.35 9,087.35 

-

7,942 .04 7,942 .04 
1.89 1.89 

-- ---------r---
7,943 .93 7,943.93 

--------·---- - --- - - ----
- -

- -

- -
-----·----- --

17,031 .28 I 17,031 .28 
- ------------ ----- ·- -- ----

PK Nayak & Co. (FRN No. 318155E) 
Cha rtered ;\ccountants 

For and on behalf of Haridaspu r Paradip Railway Company Limited 

CA S.K. Sahoo 
Partner 
Membership Nc. 060588 
FRI\J No.318155E 
U 01 N- ").AO ko5~ Q, \~!?:. £." J) f51.. ::L-4 4=f 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date : 12111 Sept 2024 

Deb a~ 
Managing Director 

DIN 07101823 

1-J~r'f\~ . 
~1vin Agarwa l 

Chief Financia l Officer 

029 

~.~ 
Director 

DIN 08550153 

-&~ 
Company Secretary 



1 laridaspur Paradip Railway Company Lim.ited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

~~-~.... ="'.....c:. .... JJ:B-.-soc:&JOllt...S.IIIL--:If.·, 

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2023 

A. Equity s~a_r:_~a pital ___________ _ (INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars No. of shares Amount 

1----------- -·----------
Balance at April 1st, 2022 

errors 
t reporting period 

Changes in equi ty share capita l due to prior period 
Restated balance at the beginning of the curren 

Changes in equity share capi tal during the period 
(a) issue of equity shares capital during the period 

---- ----- ------· 
Balance at J1 st Mar 2023 

'----- - ··----- - -·----------
B. Other Equity 

--
--

-

,_ 

(in lakhs) 

13, 000.00 1,30,000.00 
-

13,000.00 1,30,000.00 
- -

- -

13,000.00 1,30,000.00 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars Share Application 
money pending 

allotment 

Reserve & Surplus 
Total 

------- ---- - -·---·- ---c;--
Balance at the beginning of the repo rting 
period 
Changes in accounting policy or prior period 
erro rs 

Restated balance at the beginning of the 
reporting period 

Profit for the period 
Other Comprehen sive income for the period 

Totai Comprehensive Income fo r the per iod 

DiviclUlds pa;d 
Received during the period 
Share allotted during th e period 

Balance at the end of the rep::Jrting period 

-------1 

Retained Earnings 

5,827. 16 5,827.16 

- -

·--- r-

5,827.16 5,827 .16 

4,819.06 4 ,8 19.06 
1.13 1.13 

---------- --- . 
4,820 .19 4,820.19 

(1 ,560 .00) (1 ,560.00) 
- -

- -

9,087.35 9,087.35 
- --··- ·-- ------ - ----- ------·---
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

1. General Information 

Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited ("the company") was incorporated in India on 251h September 2006 as a 
Public Limited Company. The company received the mandate to develop , finance, design, engineer, procure, construct and 
operate & maintain Haridaspur Paradip new railway line project under a Concession Agreement with the Ministry of Railways 
(MaR) signed on 20th December 2007. The agreement also defines rights and obligation of the Company and MaR. 

The construction of the rail link is assigned to Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) and a construction Agreement to this effect 
was signed on 11 111 August 2009. The project achieved COD on 01 51 October 2020, as certified by the Lender's Independent 
Engineer. The reg istered office of the company on the date of approva l of the Financial Statements by the Board of Directors 
is located at Unit No.- DCB~714 , 715, 716 & 717 , 7th Floor, DLF Cyber City , Chandaka Industrial Estate, Bhubaneswar, 
Khordha, Odisha-751 024. 

2. Summary of material accounting policies 
2.1 Basis of preparation · 

Thf: financial statements as a: and for year ended 31 51 March , 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (lnd-AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 as Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules , 2015 as amended frorn time to time. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 
(a) The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an accrual bas is, except for 
the following item that have been measured at fa ir value as required by relevant lnd-AS 

(i) Defined benefit Plan and other long term employee benefits 
(ii ) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. 

(b) Current vs non-current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 

An asset is treated as ciurrent when it is : 
(i) E>:pec tod tc be rea li.?..ed or intended tc be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, 
(ii) Held p~im mily for tile purpose of trading, 
(iii) ExpLocted t9 be realized w:thin twelve months after th8 reporting period , or 
(iv) Ca!:;h or cash eq uivalen t unless restricted from being exchanged or tised to settle a liabi lity for at least tweh18 mor.ths 
after ~he reporting period . 
The Company classifies <:I I other assets as 0011-current. . . 

A liability is current when: 
(i) !l is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle , 
(ii) ll is held primarily f0r the purpose of trading, 
(i ii) :tis due to be sett led within twelve months after the reporting period , or 
(iv) There !s no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
The Company classiiies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
The operating cycle i.<> the time be tween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash 
equivalents. Tile Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

2.3 Use of estimates a."ld judgement 
The preparat ion of financia l st<.Jtements ir cDnfor•nity witt, lnd AS requir~s rmJJlagemeilt to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the ap;Jiicak)n of accounting poiicies 3i<d the reported amounts of assets, liabil ities , disClosure of 
contingent assets anc liabilities al the date of financial statements and the (eported amount of income and expenses . 
Examples of such estimaies includes estimated useful life ot property, 9lant and equipment and Intangible Assets . Actual 
results may differ from these estirnates . 
Estimates and underlying assumptions arE reviewed on a periodic basis . Future results could differ due to changes in these 
esti.maies and differe,lce be.tween the actual result and the estimates ar8 recogn ized in the period in which the results are 
kr10wn /materialize. 

2.4 State,rr.ent of Cash flow 

Cash flows are r·eported using the indirect method , "';hereby profit! (!oss) before lax is adjusted for the effects of transactions 
of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accrua ls of past or future cash rece ipts or payments . The cash flows frorr. operating, 
investing ancl financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the ava ilable information . 

For :r,e purposes of the cash flow statement , cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand , cash at banks and demand 
deposit~ with banks , ne~ of outstand ing bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand are considered part of the Company's 
cash management systen~. 
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2.5 Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
the Company operates (i .e. Functional Currency) . The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the 
functional and presentation currency of the company. All financial information presented in Indian rupees and all values are 
rounded to the nearest lakhs upto two decimals except where otherwise stated . 

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 

(a) Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost 
of asset includes the following : 

(b) Cost of rep lacement, major inspection , repai r of significant parts are capitalized if the recogn ition criteria are met. 

(c) An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from continued use of assets . Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 
is recognized in statement of profit or loss. 

Depreciation 

(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method (SLM) over the estimated useful life 
of the assets as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except, in case of Furniture & fi xtures and Mobile 
phones &. tablets . In ·bath the categories of these assets , management has estimated the useful life taking consideration the 
economic benefit embodied in these assets and other facts as technical obsolescence, wear & tear etc. 

(b) Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the useful life of remaining asset . 

The estimated useful life of assets for current and comparative period of significant items of property plant and equ:prnent 
, a1·e as follows: 

Particulars Useful Life 

Furniture and fi xtures 4 
~c~~c--·-----------+------~·----------

\---· ___ _gQJ!l_p_uters . 3 

1·-- -- -·---·Qffi_s;~~'l0Rf!!_~'2!__ ___________ -· ____ _? _____ ,_ - . --

1·-·--·-·- ·--~~Q~I_r:__p_!~ones ~-~ab l e_~------ __ __ . ____ 2 __________ . 

[ ____ ._. ___ y_g.h_icle_:>.:_ ________ -----------~-·~-------·----· 
(c) D2preciation methods. useful lives and res idual va:ues are reviewed a! each reporting date, with the eti ect of chonge in 
(·)Stimate accounted for on <~ prospective basis. 

2.7 Intangible Assets 

a) Freight Sharing Right (Railway Line under Service Concession Arrangement) 
Tl1e company recognizes an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement (SCA) when it has a right to 

, charge for usage of the concession infrastructure. An intangible asset received in consonan(;e with the service concession 
arrangement is measured at fai r value on initial recognition by refe rence to the fa ir value of the services provided . Subsequent 
to initial recognit ion , the intangible asset is measured at cost , less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if ilny. 

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement is the period from where the company 
is able [IJ charge the public for the use of the infrastructure to the end of the concess ion period (i .e. 30 year of operation or 
Net present Va!ue (NPV) payback equa! to equity investment @14% whichever is earl ier) . 

Freight sharing right is amortised using the straight line method on pro-rata bas is from the date of addition or from the date 
when the right brought in to service to the expiry of 30 year of operation or Net present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity 
investment @14% whichev er is earlier. 

Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date , with the effect of change in estima te accounted 
for on a prospective basis. · 

The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more often if . events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

b) Other Tilan Freight Stlaring Right 
Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable thai the futu re economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will 
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably . Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated amortization and impairment !ass, ifany . · · 

/. -~.;-.'\ /( 
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Amortisation 
Computer Software is amortised over a period of three years on pro-rata basis. Leasehold improvements are amortized 
over the period of lease from the month in which such improvements are capitalized or over the useful life as computed 
under the Companies Act 2013. 

2.8 Intangible Assets under development 

Freight sharing right under development 

Intangibles under development (Freight sharing right under development) are recognized at cost incurred which is reckoned 
as fair value including cost directly attributable, indirect expenditure attributable to the same and fair value adjustment of 
land related to the service concession arrangement. 

The following amounts are reduced from the intangible under development: 
a) Interest earned on the Mobilization Advances given in respect of the project execution. 
b) Amount received on sale of tender. 
c) Net Capital receipts , 
d) Net Capital receipts, Interest on FD & Sweep Ale, Misc. receipts etc 
e) Net receipts from running of tra ins prior to COD 

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 
In accordance with lnd AS-36 on Impairment of Assets, the carrying amounts of Company's assets are reviewed at each 
Balance S~1eet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's 
recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of the Fair Value less cost to sell and the value in use. An impairment loss 
is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash gene~ating unit exceeds 
iis recoverable amount. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change 
in the estimate of recoverable amount and such losses either no longer exists or has decreased . Reversal of impaired loss 
is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2.10 Revenue Recognition 

a) Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

~evenue from wntract with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are tr·ansferred to tile customer 
<;t an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services . 

b) Revenue from Railway Operation 

The revenue from Railway Operations pertaining to the reporting period is recognized based on the caiculation sheets 
received from East Coast Railways (ECoF~) till date of the approval of the financial statements of the respective reporting 
period. Hence, the difference , if any, is accounted for when the other requisite details are received/ issues are settled. 

c) Construction Contract Revenue under Service Concession Arrangement 
· Reven ue related to construction or upgrade services under a service concession arrangement is recognized over time 
based on the stage of completion of the work performed, when the outcome of construction contract can be measured 
reliably and where the ou tcome of construction contract cannot be measured reliably revenue is recognized only to the 
exblt of contract cost incurred that is probable wi ll be recoverable. 
Performance obligation is measured by the company on the basis of inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligati on 
(i.e Input Method) . 

d) Other Revenue Recognition 
(i) Interest income on FOR is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
interest rate applicable using Effective Interest rate Method. 
(i i) Other items of Income are accounted for as and when right to receive is established. 

2.11 Employee Benefits 
a) Short Term Employee Benefits 
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid for the services rendered are recognized 
as an expense during the period when the employees render the services . 

b) Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits 
(i) ~etiremen t benefits in the form of provident fund are defined contribution schemes. The contributions to the !Jrovident 
fund are charged to the Statement to tl1e Profit and Loss for ihe year when the contributions are due. 
(i i) Under the defined retirement plan , the company provides reti rement obligation in the form of gratuity. For defined 
reti rement pians , the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the present value of plan liabi lities is recognized 
as an assets and liab il ities in the statement of financial position . The cost of provid ing benefit is determined on the basis 
of actuarial va!uation using the projected unit credi t method at each year-end and is charged to the Statement of Profit and 
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(iii) Provision for long term Leave Encashment along with availment (both EL & LHAP) Leave Travel Concession is made 
based on actuarial valuation at the year end. Actuarial gains or losses related to these items are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 
(iv) Actuarial gains or losses in relation to the Gratuity are recognized in other com prehensive income. 
(v) Re-measurements recognized in other comprehensive income comprise of actuarial gains or losses that are not 
reclassified to profit or loss from other comprehensive income in subsequent periods. Retirement benefits liabi lity in respect 
of Gratuity and Leave Encashment is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation. 

2.12 Borrowing Cost 
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, 
are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets till such time the assets are substantially ready fo r their intended use. A 
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other 
borrowings costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

2.13 Current and Deferred Tax 
a) Current Income Tax 

i. Current income tax is determined as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act in respect of taxable income for the year. 
ii. Current income tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Liability for additional taxes , if any, is provided I paid as and when 
assessments are completed . 
iii. Current tax related to OCI Items is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) . 
iv. Since F.Y. 2020-21 , the Company adopted the new tax regime under Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 . 

b) Deferred tax 

i. Deffmed income tax assets and liabi lities are recognized for temporary differences which is computed using the tax rates 
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantive ly enacted at the reporting date and applicable to the Company. 
ii . Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences , and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 
utilized. 
iii. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the ex tent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be 
utilised. 
iv. Deferred lax related to OCI !tern are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). 

c) Minimum Alternative Tax 

Since the Company adopted the new tax regime under Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the provisions of 
Minimum Alternative Tax do not apply to the Company. 

2.14 Taxes on Income and interest, penalty, claims and debit notes 

Tax/interest/Fines/penalties on account of late deposit and non-deduction of income tax deducted at source and other 
statu:ory dues are accounted for in tile year in which they are levied by the statutory authorities. 

Claims are accounted for in the year in which they are received/finally settled. Debit notes/adjustments i11 respect of 
deductions are accounted for in the year in which they are received/settled. 

2.1 5 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

a) Provisions: Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obl igation and there is a reliable estimate 
of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the besi estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the Balance Sheet dale. Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 
Pro·Jision which expected to be settled beyond 12 months are measured at the present value by using pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as 
interest expenses. 

(b) Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in either of the fo llowing cases: 
i. A present obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources wiil be required to 
settle the obligation ; or 
ii . A reliable estimate of the present obl igation cannot be made; or 
ii i. A possible obligation , unless the probability of outflow of resource is remote. 

(c) Contingent Liability is net of estimated provisions considering possible outflow on settlement. 
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2.16 Leasing 
a) Company as a lessee 

(i) The Company recognizes a right-of- use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right of-use 
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date , plus any initial direct cost incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and 
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 
received. 

(ii) The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-l ine method from the commencement date to the 
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-to-use-asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful life of the 
right-to-use asset is determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition , the right-to-use 
asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

(iii) The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined , 
then Company's incremental borrowing rate . 

(iv) The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, it is remeasured when there is a 
change in future lease payments from a change in an index or rate . When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a 
cotTesponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right -of-use asset, or is recorded in the profit and loss if 
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

(v) The Company presents right-to-use assets that do not qualify as investment property separately on the Balance Sheet 
under "Right to Use Assets. " Lease liabilities are also shown separately on the Balance Sheet under "Financial Liabilities." 

(vi) St10rt term lease and leases of low value assets:-The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use asset and 
lease liabilities for short term leases that have lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The 
Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term . 

(b) As a lessor 

(i) When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an 
cperating lease. To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers 
substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to the ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, t11en the 
lease is a finance lease , if not then it is an operating lease. As part of the assessment, the Company considers certain 
indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset. 

(ii) If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies lnd AS-115 "Revenue from contract 
with customers" to allocate the consideration in the contract. 

(iii) The Company recognizes lease payments received under operating lease as income on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term as part of "Other Income" . 

2.17 Earning Per Share 
In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity shareholders . The 
number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period. In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.18 Non-derivative financ'ial assets 
The company recognizes a finan cial asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has an unconditional 
contractual right to receive cash or another fi nancial asset from cr at the direction of the grantor for the construction or 
upg rade services provided . Such financial assets are measured at fair value on initial recogn ition and classified as loans 
and 1·ece ivab les. Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets are measured at amortized cost. 

If the company is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then each 
component of the consideration is accounted for separately and is recognized initia lly at the fair value of the consideration 
rece1ved or receilfable. 

2.19 Fair Value Measurement 
Company measures financial instruments at fa ir value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received 
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabi lity takes 
place either: 
· in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• ln Jhe absence of a principal market , in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The fair value of an asset or a liability 
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liabi lity, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value , maximizing the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs . 

,1\ssets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
who le: 
1. Level 1 -Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
2. Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 
or indirectly ob~ervable. 
3. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sign ificant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable. 
For assets and liabil ities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 

~ whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

At the reporting date , the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be 
re-measured cr re-assessed as per the accounting policies. For this analysis , the Company verifies the major inputs applied 
in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents . 

The Company also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to 
determine whether the change is reasonable . 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
roature , characteristics and risks of tl1e asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

The fair value of an intangible asset (recognized as per service concession arrangement) is determined based on the fair 
value of the construction costs incurred. 

2.20 Dividend to equity holders 
Dividend paid/payable shall be recognized in the year in which the related dividends are approved by Shareholders or Board 
of Directors as appropriates . 

2.21 Financial instruments: 
(a) Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial Instruments recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are directly attr·ibutable to Ire acquis!tion 
or issue of the financial instruments . 
(b) Subsequent measurement 
Financial Assets 
Financial assets are classified in fo llowing categories : 
At Amortised Cost 
A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

(i) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and 
(ii) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. · · 

l: inancial assets measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method less impairment, if any. The EIR 
amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

· The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial 
assets, and 

· The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 
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At Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 

FVTPL is a residual category for financial Assets. Any financial assets, wh ich does not meet the criteria for categorization 
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI , is classified as at FVTPL. 
In addition , the company may elect to designate financial asset , which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOC I criteria, 
as at FVTPL. If doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency. The company has not 
designated any financia l asset as at FVTPL. 
Financial assets included wi thin the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities at Amortised Cost 

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fa ir va lue, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest 
rate method. 

-- Financial liabilities at FVTPL 

The company has not designated any fin ancia l liabil iti es at FVTPL. 

(c) Derecognition 

Financial Asset 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of simi lar financial assets) is derecognized 
only when the contractua l rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the fin ancial assets and substantially 
all risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset . 

Financial Liabi lity 

A fi nancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liabil ity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms , or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantial ly modified , such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original 
liabi lity and the recognition of a new liability , and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recogn ized in the 
income statement. 

(d) Impairment of fin ancia l assets : 

Company app:i.-~s expect (~ d r.:redi t loss (ECL) modei for measurement and recogn ition of impairment loss. The Company 
fo llows' simplified approach' for recogn ition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivabie. The application of simplified 
approach does not requ ire the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recogn ises impairment loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECLs a\ each reporting date, right from its in itia l recognition. 
Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised 
cost and FVTOCI debt instruments . The impairment methodology applies on whether there has been sign ificant increase in 
credit risk. 
ECL impnirment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expens.e in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

2.22 Material Events 

Material events occurring after the Balance Sheet date are taken into cognizance. 

2.23 Disclosure as per lnd AS 8 'Accounting policies, change in accounting estimates & errors' 

(a) Material a<;:counting policy information 

The Company adoi}ted the amendment to lnd AS 1 'Presentation of financial statements' as notified by Ministry of Corporate 
Affa irs vide notification 31 March 2023 relating to 'Disclosure of accounting policy informat ion' - from ·J April 2023. Al though 
the amendment did not resul! in any changes in the accounting policy themselves, they impacted the accounting poli cy 
information disclosed in the financial statementt: . The amendments· requires the disclosure of (materia l) rather than 
(significant) accou nting policies . The amendments also provide guidance o:1 the app lication ot material ity to disclosu re of 
accounting policies , assisting entit ies to provide useful , entity- specific accoun ting policy information that user need to 
unde r·stand other information in the financial statements. 

(b) Standard/Amendments issued but not yet effective : 

Ministr~' of Corparate Affairs (MCA) noti fies new standards or amendments to the existing standa rds under Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 from time to time. MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to 
the existing stand1:lrds , which are effective from 1 April 2024. 
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!Jaridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CIN U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

3. Property, Plant and Equ ipment 

Particulars Computer Furniture& Office 
&Servers Fixtures Equipment 

Cost or Deemed Cost 

At 1st April 2022 13.92 5.79 2.18 

Additions 2.40 3.17 3.53 

Disposals/Adjustments - - -
At 31st March 2023 16.32 8.96 5.71 

Additions 2.68 0.84 0.04 

~sposals/Adjustments 2.11 1.75 -
-

31st March 2024 16.89 8.05 5.75 

f Depceclatlon anri lmealcment 

At 1st April 2022 5.51 2.80 1.12 
--- . -
Depreciation charge 4.46 1.36 0.53 r foe the peclod 
Impairment - - -

Disposals/Adjustments - - -

I At 31st March 2023 9.97 4.1 6 1.65 
----------------· ------·----------· 

1 Depreciation charge 3.66 1.66 0.91 
! for the period 

I lrnpa1nnent - - -

I Dispos;;;ls/Adjustments 2.00 1.66 

CAi -~1~~t M~~~~-~o2~== :=~~===-·=-11-:63--____ 4.16 ___ _ 2.56 

1 Net_ Book Value 
I 

! 
At 31st March 2024 5.26 

At 3·1 st March 2023 6.35 
-------- ------- -------·----------· 

3.89 

4.80 

3.19 

4.06 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Vehicle Mobile & Total 
Telephone 

29.87 3.70 55.46 

- 0.86 9.96 

- - -

29.87 4.56 65.42 

- 1.81 5.38 

- 1.37 5.23 

29.87 5.00 65.57 

14.11 1.23 24.77 

3.54 1.64 11 .53 

- - -

- - -

17.65 2.87 36.30 
-----

3.55 1.47 11 .26 

- i 
1.31 4.97 ! 

~i~~--==-= 3.~~ ---~-=·=---:~.:.~~j 
-·-·- -j 

1.97 22§j98 i 

1.69 29.12 
-----------

8.67 

12.22 

3.1 Property, Plant and equipment are subject to first charge to secure the Company's Bank loans. For details, refer 
Note, 14. 
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1-Iaridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

4. Right of use Assets 

jParticulars 

r·- Cost or deemed cost 

I

I At 1st April 2022 

Additions 
1
1 Disposals/Adjustments 

. At 31st March 2023 

I 

Additions 

· Disposa ls/Adjustments 

At 31st March 2024 

I 
Depreciation and Impairment 

At 1st April 2022 

Depreciation charged for the year 

Disposals/Adjustments 

At 31 st March 2023 

Depreciation charged for the year 

D!::;pos;;;ls/Adjustments 

At 31st Marci l 20<~4 

At 31 st March 2024 

At ~s 1 st March 2023 

Rights of 
use assets 

67.80 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Tota l 

67.80 

67.80 67.80 1 

I 
I 
I _______________ ! 

67.80 67.80 

----- ---------
7.53 7.53 

- ----- ------- ---1 
22.60 22.60 

30."13 30.13 

22 .60 22 .60 

I 
I 

__ _ ., ________ -- -··- ----· ·- ·- -------- --- -1 
:i2.73 52 .73 I 

------- ·- -· ------ ·- ----· .. -- --, 
------------·--·------ ........ ----------------1 

·15. 07 15.07 1 -----· ·-1 
3'7.67 37.67 1 

'---- J 

4.1 Reier I·Jote No.33 for detai ls of leases. 
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I-Iaridaspur Poradzj7 Railway Company Limited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

5. Other Intangible Assets 

,.-----------·----------------
Particulars 

Cost or deemed cost 

At 1st April 2022 

Addition during the period 

Adjustments 

At 31st March 2023 

Addition during the period 

Adjustments 

At 31st March 2024 

Amortisation and Impairment 

At 1st April 2022 

Amortization for the period 

Disposals/l1djustments 

At 31st March 2023 

Amortization for the period 

Disposa ls/Adjustments 

At 31st March 2024 

At 31st March 2024 

At 31st March 2023 
----- ----- ------------·- ----------

(INR in Lakhs) 

Freight Software Total 
Sharing Rights 

2,52,031.72 0.50 2,52,032.22 

8,326 .21 8,326 .21 

2,60 ,357.93 0.50 2,60,358.43 

4 ,511 .34 4 ,511 .34 

2,64,869.27 0.50 2,64,869. 77 

11,927.86 0.49 11 ,928.35 

-------------- -····--------· 
8,544.42 8,544.42 

20,472.28 0.49 20,472.77 

8,804.27 0.01 8,804 .28 

- i 

=-~ 2~~~6-.ss -~=~=~~o~~~=~~:=z~-!~~:_o_~=-~ j 
I 

--------:·---------- ------------··-·- -----~- -1 
2,35,592 .1 2 - 2,35,592. 72 1 

! 
2,39,885.65 0.01 2.39,885.66 J 

-·--··------··---· -----

5.1 Amortisation of Intangible Assets included in Note-24 Depreciation and Amortization. 

5.2 Intangible assets are subject to first charge to secure the Company's bank loans . For detai ls, refer Note 14. 

Sa Intangible Assets under Development 

r------ ------------------- . 
1 Particulars 

I 

I 

At 1st April 20.22 

Addition during the' period 

Adjustments 

At 31st March 2023 

l Add1t1on dunng the penod 

Adjustments I Transfer 

At 31st March 2024 
------

040 

HP BG Rail Link/ 
DC Chord Line 

169.11 

_________{!NR in Lakhs) 
T;-~----l 

169.11 

--------------------
169.11 169.11 



Ilarida::,pur ParadzjJ Railway Company Limited 
CIN: U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

6. Financial Assets 
6.1 Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 

At Amortised Cost 
Receivable from East Coast Railways under SCA 
(Value of land) Refer Note -29 
Considered Good : Unsecured 

At Amortised Cost 

Security Deposits 

Total 

7 Deferred Tax 

Pii rticulars 

Deferred Tax Assets 

Unabsorbed Depreciation & Loss 
Employee Benefits 

Total deferred tax Assets 

Deferred Tax Liability 
lndAS transition Adjustment 
Property Plant & Equipment & ROU 

Total deferred tax Liability 

(Net Deferred Tax Liability)/ Assets 

M(1Ve1~ 1 ent in Deferred Tax Liability 

Particulars Unabsorbed 
Depreciation 

& Loss 

As at 
31st March 2024 

1,383.16 

13.76 

1,396.92 

As at 
31st March 2024 

13, 105.76 
19.52 

13,125.28 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March 2023 

1,257.17 

12.51 

1,269.68 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March 2023 

12,819.01 
15.59 

12,834.60 
--------------- --------

21,053 .44 17,235.75 ------------
21 ,053.44 17,235.75 

(7 ,9 28 .16) (4,401 .15) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Employee PPE ROU & Total 
Benefits Intangible Assets 

---------------------------
Opening balance as 
on 1st Apri! 2022 
Charged/( credited) 
during 2022-23 
To Profit & Loss 

To other comprehensive income 
Closing balance as at 31 
March 2023 

Charged/( credited) 
during 2023-24 
To · Profi t & Loss 

To other comprehensive income 

Closing balance 
as at 31 March 2024 

(1 0,221.62) (12.22) 

(2,597.39) (3 .75) 

0 .38 

(12,819 .01) (15.59) 

(286.75) (4 .57) 

0 .64 

(13,105.76) (19.52) 

·----·-------- ---·· 

041 

12,615.22 2,381 .38 

4 ,620.53 2,019.39 

0 .38 

17,235.75 4,401.15 

3 ,817.69 3,526 .T1 

0 .64 

21 ,053.44 7,923 .16 
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flaridaspztr Paradip Railwa_v Company Limited 
CIN : LJ452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement fo r the year ended March 31, 2024 

8 Other non-current assets 

I 

~ 
Particulars 

a) Capital Advances 
Advance to land acquisition officer 
Advance for Construction of Bui lding 
Total Advance to RVNL under various heads 

b) Fair valuation adjustment-Financial Assets 
I . " Prepayments 

L 
c) Income Tax Refund Receivable 
d) Prepaid Expenses 

Total 
------·-- --------·--·-----·· 

9 Financial Assets-Current 

9.1 Trade Receivables (Net of O&M) 
~Pa-rticulars -'----

~--C~~Isidered good-Secured 

I Considered good-Unsecured 

I Trade r~eceivables which have significant increase in 
j .credit risk · 

I 
Trade Receivables -credit impaired 

Less: Provision made ~ 

I Total 

As at 
31st March 2024 

As at 

0.47 
50.00 

3,096.12 

1.21 

497.77 

3,645.57 

31st March 2024 

14,904 .74 

1,959.88 

__ _,__(1-'--,959.88) 

14,!1{)4.74 

9.1.1 T .. ade FZeceivables represen ts amount receivab le from the East Coast r~ai lways (ECol~). 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 
31 st March 2023 

3.86 
50.00 

4 ,326.5 1 

2.07 

357.00 
13.23 

4,752.67 

(INR in Lakhs) 

--~-As at 
31st March 2023 _ 

6,978 .36 

6,978.36 
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I-Iaridaspur ParadzjJ Railway Company Limited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

9.2 Cash and Cash equivalent (INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Cash on hand 
Balances with banks: 
On current accounts 
Fixed Deposits l1aving original. Maturity of 

· three months or less 

Cash and Cash equivalent as per balance sheet 

As at 
31st March 2024 

0.11 

95.92 
5,950.00 

6,046.03 

As at 
31st March 2023 

0.72 

205.12 
4,015.00 

4,220.84 L __________________________________________________________________________________ ~ 

9.3 Other Bank Balances 

Pc:uticulars 

Fixed Deposits issued against Credit Ca rd 

Fixed Deposits under Debt Service Reserve Account* 

As at 
31st March 2024 

10.00 

6,000.00 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March 2023 

6,000.00 

1,068 .80 Earmarked Balance in Dividend Account 

Total l ___ , ___________ 6 __ ,o_1_o_.o_o ________ 7_,o_ss.so j 

* Deposits under the Debt Service Reserve Account is maintained for an amount equivalent to sum required for 
meeting ensuing two quarters debt service obligations i.e. the repayment of the principal amou nts of the Rupee 
Term l.onn and payment of interest thereon availed from the lender or as mandate by the lending bar:k . 

9.4 Others (INR in Lakhs) 

1

·- ............ - ·-----·------ --·-·- -·-·----··------------- ____________ .. , ___________ .. __ _____ ___ .. _____ --' 

Pi!rticulars As at A. s at I 
; 31st March 2024 31st 11/la(ch .2023 I 
1 .... ·-- ·----------.. ----- ··-·-------- ------ .. ----- ---·--·---·--·- --______ .. ---- ------·-·· ······-·-· .. ·- . ...... 

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 170.09 135.86 i 
Considered Good : Unsecured [ 
Current Security Deposits 0.87 0.87 

Other ncceivables 

. Total 

I 
110 Current Tax Assets 

Particulars 

------------------------

10.00 

180.96 

As at 
31st March 2024 

I 
. I 

136.73·--1 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st 11Jiarcf1 2023 

93 .85 2i0.46 -------·93.ss _______ 21o.4s --~ 

_____________ _ ! 
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1-Jaridaspur ParadzjJ Railway Company Li1nited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 -

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31: 2024 

11 Other current assets 

Particulars 

Prepaid Expenses 
Interest on Term loan Receivable 
Others 
Fair valuation adjustment-Financial Assets 
Prepayments 
Total 

12 Equity Share Capital 
,----·-·------ ------

Particulars 

1----:-:-~--,---.,--.,.------;-:-:--·-----­
Authorised share capital 

As at 31st March2024 

236.09 
3.74 
4.04 

0.85 
244.72 

As at 
31st March 2024 

150,00,00,000 Equity Share of INR 10 each 1,50,000.00 
(31st March 2024 150,00,00 ,000 Equity Shares of INR10 each) 

1,50,000.00 

I 

I 

Issued Capital 
130,00,00,000 Equity Share of INR1 0 each 
(31st March 2023 130,00,00 ,000 Equity Share of INR10 each) 

1,30 ,000.00 

1,30,000.00 
j----- . ------------
1 Subscribed and Paid up Capital 
/ 130,00,00,000 Equity Share of INR 10 each 1 ,30,000.00 
L 1st March 2023 130,00,00,000 Equity Share of INR10 each 

1 ,30,000 .. 00 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March2023 

264.78 
0.13 
5.15 

1.25 
271.31 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 
3'ist March 2023 

1 ,50,000.00 

1,50.000.00 

1 ,30,000.00 

1,30,000.00 

1 ,30,000.00 

1.d9.000.00 

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital (INR in Lakhs) 
--·--··-····--·---------··· ·------------------------ --

Particulars No of shares Amount 

·-·-- . ____ --·-·---·--·--···--·--·------------· ______ (i!~~~.::l__ ________________ j _!.!'JR ~n-~'0.-~sl_ __ _ 
Halam:e ~~ s c;t 1st April 2022 13,000.00 1,30,000.00 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to pri or period errors 

Resta ted balance at the beginning of the current reporting 
period 

Add: Shares Issued during the year 
Add: Partly paid converted to fu lly paid 
Less: Shares bought back during the period 

Balance As at 31st March 2023 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting 
period 

Add : Shares Issued during the year 
Add: Partly paid converted to fully paid 
Less: Shares bought back during the period 

Balance As at 31st March 2024 
Terms & Right attached to equity shares 

-----------·------.. ·---------·----- ---·--
13,000.00 1,30,000.00 

13,000.00 
-----' ----- 1,30,000.00 

--------------
13,000 .00 1 ,30,000.00 

13,000.00 1,30,000.00 

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 1 0/- per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is entitled to one vote per share and also to dividends in Indian rupees . The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting . 

In the event of liquidation of the Compa ny, the t10lders of equity shares will be entitled to receive rema ining assets of 
the company after distributing all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders. 
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I-Jaridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Shares heid by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiariesfassociates 
The company does not have any holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates . 

Details of shareholders holding in the company holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company 

Name of the shareholder As at 31st March 2024 

No. of Shares 
(in Lakhs) 

%holding 
in the class 

As at 31st March 2023 

No. of Shares 
(in Lakhs) 

%holding 
in the 
class 

~----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Equity shares of I NR 10/- each with voting rights 

---------------------------------------------------------
1. Government of Odisha 

[23,77,93,134 shares are Fully pa id up@ INR10/­
per share] (as at 31st March 2023 : 23,77 , 93,134 
shares@ INR10/- each) 

'2. Odisha Mining Corporation Limited 
[1 0,99,97,702 shares are Fui'ly paid up @ INR.1 0/­
per share] (1\s at 31 st March 2023 : 10,99,97,702 

2,377.93 

1,099.98 

18.29 2,377 .93 18.29 

8.46 1,099.98 8.46 

sha.-es @ IN R 1 0'-/--'e_a__;c_h'-) ----------------------------------------------­
t1. Paradip Port Jl.utt10rity 
I ['13 ,85,21 ,106 shares are Fully paid up@ INR10/-
1 per share] (As at 31st March 2023: 13,85,21 ,106 
' , _ ~.b'!:es @~R 10/- each) ___________ _ 

r
. f~ail Vikas Nigam Limited 

[39 ,00.00,000 shares are Fully paid up @ INR 10/­
per share] (As at 31 st March 2023 : 39,00,00,000 

-- ~~~~~ @_INR10/- each) 
5. Sagarmala Development Co. Ltd 

I 
[33,67,88,058 shares are Fully paid up@ INR10/­
per share] (As at 3·1 st March 2023 : 33,61,88 ,058 

1,385.21 

3,900.00 

3,367.88 

10.66 1,385.21 10.66 

30.00 3,900.00 30 .00 

25.9'1 3,367.88 25.91 

, _____ :;_h9.re~ @_~"-Jf3_1 Qi_:-_~_?ch ) __________ ________________ _ -------- ·-------------- ----------------------·-·-- --------- -------- -

Aggregate no. of equity sha res issued as fully paid by way of bonus during the period of five years irnmediately prec-:-din( 
the repo ~·ting .date 

Particulars 

Equity shares issued 
as bonus 

As at Mar 2024 
No's in Lakhs 

Nil 

Nil 

A!:; at 31 Mar 2023 
No's in Lakhs 

Nil 

Nil 

Shareho!ding of Promoters as on 3·1 st Marcil 2024 are as follows· 
I SharE;sheld by promoters at the 
t-------------=-P-ro_m __ o 

end of the year 
ter Name 

Rail Vikas Nigam !... imited 

ed 
-,---,---.,..-,--,-

1 

Esset Mining and !ndustries Limit 

Total · 
---

Shareholding 'Jf Promoters as on 31st March 2023 are as follows: 

As at 31 Mar 2022 As at 31 Mar 2021 As at 31 Mar 2021 
No's in Lakhs 

Nil 

Nil 

No. of shares (in I 
La ~hs ) 

3,900.00 

300.00 

4,200.00 

No's in Lakhs No's in Lakhs 

Nil Nil 

Nil Ni l 

% of total I %~hange during-­

o.oo-j· the year 

-~----_ -

share 

30.00 

2.31 

32.31 
' 0.00 

1 Shares held by prom~ers at the end of !_0e yea r===-::...~r·Nc . of shares (in ~o~f total ·--

1------------~omoter Name __ _ . Lakhs) -----~~ sha" 
Rail 'v' i:< as Nigam Limited ~ 3,900.00 30.00 

,-EsseiMinir_il_:~~ lridustrTes Limitecl--- -- ----~==---=-- 3oo.oo ---- ___ 2._3_1 __ +---------------

I __ T_o_ta_l ------- - -- --------------- ----------- ----- _____ 4_,~o_o_.o_o __ ~--~--2_. 3_1 __ __._ _________ o.oo_ 
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]{aridaspur Paradip Raihvay Cornpany Limited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

13 Other Equity 

Particulars 

Retained Earnings 
Share application money pending for allotment 

Total 

As at 
31st March 2024 

17,031.28 

17,031 .28 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March 2023 

9,087.35 

9,087.35 
-------- -----------------------------------

13.1 Retained earnings 
-------------

·Particulars 

Opening Balance 

Add: Net Profit/( Loss) for the period 

Other comprehensive income arising from 
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation net of 
income tax 

Less : Interim Dividend 

Closing Balance 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at As at J 
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

-------------------
9,087 .35 5,827.16 
7,942 .04 4 ,819.06 

1.89 "1.13 

(1 ,560.00) ___ _) 

17,031 .28 9,087 .35 

Reta ined Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company. 

13.2 Dividend to equity holders 

Dividend paid/poyable snail be recognized in the year in which the relateci dividends are appm-.teci by 
Shareholders or Board of Di rectors as appropriates. 
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flarida!'Jpur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CIN: U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

14 Financial Liability-Non Current 

14.1 Borrowing 

Particulars 

(i) Secured-At amortised cost 

Term Loan 
From Bank 

Total 

Summary of borrowing arrangement 

As at 
31st March 2024 

1 '13,202.89 

1 ' 13,202.89 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March 2023 

1,20,002.89 

1,20,002 .89 

(a) Post refinancing , the Company has avail ed the Rupee Term Loan to part fin ance the project from M/s UCO Bank under 
sole lending arrangement and d0cuments to this effect which stipulates terms & conditions (including the security and 
charge) were execu ted on 18th October 2021 , as amended from time to time. 

(b) During F.Y. 2023-24, the Company prepaid an amount of INR6800.00 Lakhs (N il during F.Y. 2022-23) and the outstanding 
credit facili ties as on 31st March 2024 is INR 1,13,202.89 Lakhs (INR1 ,20,002 .89 lakhs as on 31st March 2023) . 

(c)_ Amortization schedule of credit facilities availed from M/s UCO bank is mentioned below· QNR in Lakhs J Q Term Loan-· Quarter Term Loan­
Repayment 

·----------------1 
Dec-21 

/V~ r-22 - , 

Jun-22 

Pre-Pa id 
during F.Y. 
2021-22, 
prior to 

refinance 

Quarter 

Mar-25 

Jun-25 

Term Loan­
Repayment 

Pre-Paid 
during 
F.Y. 

f-- Sep-25 2023-24 , 

Quart 
er 

Term Loan­
Repayment 

f-----!-------4 
Jun-28 2,540.32 

Sep-28 2,540.32 

Oec-28 2,540.32 
----------- - --

Mar-29 2,540.32 

Quarter Term Loan­
Repayment 

1 

t~~r Repayment 

1--------1-------~- ~----+--~~~-1 
Sep-3_1_

1 
___ 3_,_62_9_.0_3---j Dec-34 4,717.73 

Dec-31 3, 629 .03 __ M_a_r--3-5 - ·- 4.,-,""7 -:-:: 17=-. 7=c3::--l 
1---------~------- r----~-----------

Mar-32 3,629.03 Jun-35 5,080.64 

-- Jun-32 --- ~-3,991~3- ~--Sep-35 ---4-,599 85-
- - Sep-32 --~ 3,991 .93 . ~-=--=-~9~{l~ ·-~~~0_?:_~89-~ 
-- Dec-32 --- , 3-;99-1--:-93-

~~~} - 1 
Mar--23 

-~c-25_1 after 
re finance 

I --~ar-26 . of the 

__ ~~~~~i-- ~ ~}~~):s 
Jun-29 2.903.22 

Sep-29 2,903.22 

Jun-23 

I Sep-23 

t-Dec-~~~ - P;e-Paid 
Mar-24 during F.Y. 
----- 2021-22 , 

. ~·--~-- -~~-24 _ after 
Sep-24 refinance of 
---- the credit 
Dec-24 facilit ies by 

M/s uco L Bank 

14.2 Lease Liabilities 

Particulars 

Lease Liabi lities 

Total 

--~-r 3.991-~~~ 
Jun-33 4.354 .83 

- ·-------1--------,--
4 ,354 .83 Sep-33 

Dec-26 UCO Mar-30 2,903.22 

--------
Dec-29 2,903.22 

Jun-27 Sep-30 3,266.12 Dec-33 4,354 .83 
- --

. Mar-~~ Bank Jun--3-0-~--3~,2:..:6:..:6-.1--2:.... 

Sep-27 Oec-30 3,266.12 Mar-34 4 , 354 .83 

:~;:l._1_. 9_0_9_. 6_8__j__~~J-~--~~:~-3_-1-1 'L_--3_
3

:-~-~:--_o-
1 

~~-'--_j_-_s_Jeu_P~--;~4. __ .1....__:_: ~-~-~--~-! . J.......l ________ __J 

As at 
31st March 2024 

·----------

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March 2023 

17.59 

17.59 
Refer Note No.33 for details of lease. 

15 Provisions _______ _,_(_IN~ in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at As at 
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

-------------------------- ---- ----------- ------------- -...... .. --- --- - -----
Employee Benefits 

Gratuity 

Leave Encashment!LHAP 

Leave Travel Concession 

Total 

.... 

047 

18.37 

52.1 1 

2.72 

73.20 
----

17.47 

28 .38 

3.02 

48.87 
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11arida!:Jpur Paradip Raihvay Company Limited 
CJN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

16. Fi nancial Liability-Current 

16.1 Borrowing 

Particulars 

Current maturities of long-term debt 

Total 

16.2 Lease Liabilities 

Particulars 

Lease Liabili ti es 

Tota l 
Refer Note No.33 for details of leases 

16.3 Other Financia l Liabilities 

Particulars 

Others 

Other payables 

(i) Audit Fees Payab le 

(ii) Others 

Dividend Payable 

Total 

As at 

31st March 2024 

As at 

31st lv'larch 2024 

17.59 

17.59 

As at 

31st March 2024 

1.97 

20.94 

(INR in I akhs) 

As at 

31st March 2023 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 

31st March 2023 

24.78 

24.78 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 

31st March 2023 
----

1.25 

31.75 

1 ,068.EO 

~7--~~!':!: ct~:rer~~ l iabJ_I~~L _______________ ----------- ----------- __ (.l_f'! f3 .~~La!:~-~-
Particulars 

- -----------·---
Others 

Statutory dues* 

Tota l 

• Includes TDS, EPF, Professional Tax etc. 

18 Provisions 

As at 
31st March 2024 

42.28 

42.28 

As at 
31st .March 2023 

163.77 

163.77 

-- -p;),iiCUTa-rs _ _ _______________________ A_s_a_t _____ --- (INR in Lakhs) 

As at 

Employee Benefits 

Gratu ity 
Leave Encashment/LHAP 

Leave Travel Concession 

Tota l 

31st March 2024 

04-8 

----

0.39 

1.25 

2.72 

4.36 

31st March 2023 

0 49 

1"116 

"1.45 

13.10 
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lfaridaspur Paradip Railway Company L imited 
CIN: U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 
19 Revenue from Operation (INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Revenue From Contracts with Customers 
Construction Contract Revenue under SCA (refer note 29) 
Income from Railway Operation 

Total 

For the year ended 
31st March 2024 

2,875.27 
45,745.13 

48,620.40 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

7,144.61 
35,055.82 

42,200.43 

19.1 The Income from Railway Operations pertaining to .the reporting period is recognized based on the calculation 
sheets received from East Coast Rai lways (ECoR) till date of the approval of the financial statements of the 
respective reporting period. Hence, the difference , if any, is accounted for when the other requisite deta ils are 
received/ issues are settled 

20 Other Income (11\JR in Lakhs) 
---------------------------------------

Particu lars 

Interest Income 
(a) Bank Deposits 
(b) Others 

Oiher Non-Operating Income 
(a) Unwinding of discount on receivable from 

East Coast Railways under SCA 
(b) Unwinding of discoun t on Security Deposit 

Total 

2i Other Operating Cost 

Particu :ars 

Cor: struction Cost under SCA (refer note 29) 
Opera~ i o r1 & Maintenance Expenses 

Total 

For the year ended 
31st March 2024 

938.79 
6.65 

125.72 

1.25 

1,072 .41 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

694.53 

11 4. 29 

1.14 

809_96 
------------ -----

(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March_ 2024 _______ 3~~ _Marc '1_}~?.~------

2,8 /5.27 7,144 .61 
16,075.8 1 11 ,684 18 

18,951 .08 '18,828.79 

21:1 The Operations and Ma intenance pertai ning to the reporting period is recognized bf3scd on the ca lculation shee ts 
received frorn East Coast R<1 ilways (ECoR) tili da te of the approval of the financial statemer-.ts of the respec:ive 
reporting period. Hence , the difference , if any, is accounted for when the other requisi te details are received/ 
issues are settled . Further, ECoR charged GST on O&M amounting to IN R1959 .88 Lakhs during F.Y.2023-24 
(Nil during F.Y. 2022-23). The Company has made provision of the same in the books of accounts . Moreover, 
the pro--rata allocation of F'roject!nsurance and incidental expenses F. Y. 2023-24 is INR315.4 7 Lakt-:s (iN r~ 321 . 82 
Lakhs for F.Y.2022-23) . Further, the amount incurred by IVl/s RVNL .towards maintenance/restoration of Project 
Assets amounting to lt\IR37 .31 Lakhs (Nil accounted for F.Y. 2022-23) is also included in the abovf. figure . 
Differences sha ll be accounted for during the period in which they are settled. 

22 Employee benefit Expenses (INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Salaries, wages & allowances 
Employer's Contribution towards EPF 
Ex-Gratia 
Reti rement Benefits 
Staff Welfwe Expenses 
Sub- Total 

Less: License Fee & Other recovery 

Total 

For the year ended 
31st Marcil 2024 

049 

112.70 
10.15 
13.87 
17.1 7 
0.51 

154.40 

(1.36) 

153.04 

For the year ended 
31st Marc h 2023 

116.04 
9 05 

13.53 
11.83 

0.83 
151 .28 

(1.03) 

150.25 
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1-farida;qntr Paradtj7 Railway Company Limited 
CiN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

23 Finance Cost (INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

Interest on Term Loan 9,276 .54 8,413.55 
Other Finance Charges 0.17 0.96 
Interest on Lease Liability 4.24 6.49 

Interest Expenses for Construction Contractor* 508 .85 

Tota l 9,789.80 8,421.00 

*Interest expenses for the construction contractor represent the amount oTinterest payable to M/s RVNL for the 
period after the COD, as accepted by the company. Any differences will be accounted for in the period during 
which the issue is settled. 

24 Depreciation and Amortisation 

Particulars 

Depreciation on Property , Plant & Equipment 
(ReferNote- 3) 
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer Note- 5) 
Deprecia tion on Right of Use Assets 

Total 

25 Other Expenses 

Particulars 

For the year ended 
31st March 2024 

11.26 

8,804 .28 
22 .60 

(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

11.54 

8,544.42 
22.60 ____________ .. ___ _ 

8,838.14 8,578.56 
--- ----------

For the year ended 
31st March 2024 

(INR in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

---·------
Payment to statutory auditor 

li) /',s /\uciitor - Sta1utory Audit 
(Including statutory audit for Interim Period) 

(i i) Tax Audit Fees 
(iii) Reimbursement of expenses 

Lega l & professional ,:harges 
Travelling & con veyance 
Office rent 
Telephone & internet expenses 
Vehicle insurance, running & maintenance expenses 
Fil ing fees 
Seminar & meeiing expenses 
Advertisement Expenses 
Internal audit fees 
Contribution towards membersh ip fees o fAIR 
Direc!or's sitting fees 
Winding up of discount on Security deposit 
Other Membership Fees 
CSR Expenses 
Loss on Sale of Assets (Net) 
Survey of Doubling Line of HP BG Rail 
f'/lir.ce llaneous expenses 

Total 

050 

2.41 

0 .60 

90.03 
12.10 
'1 1.78 
2.56 
5.70 
0.38 
5.34 
0.39 
2 .83 
1.00 
3.30 
0.05 

14.50 
107.06 

0 .08 
215.79 

16.44 

492.34 

0.33 

80A5 
4.66 

12.45 
2.99 
5.38 
0.22 
0.81 

2.72 
1.00 
4 .01 
0.05 
0.48 

61.59 

14.89 

193.34 
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I!aridaspur ParadzjJ Railway Cornpany Limited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2 0 24 

26 Income Tax Expense 

26. 1 Income tax recognised in profit and loss (INR in Lakhs) 
----------------------------------------------- ----------

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

Current income tax: 
Current income tax charge 
- For earlier years (net) 
Defe rred tax : 
In respect of the current year 
MAT Payable 

Total 

31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

3,526 .37 2,019.39 

3,526. 37 2,0 '19.39 
------------ ·------------------

Reconciliat ion between tax expense and the accou nting profi t : (INR in Lakhs 

Parti culars For the yea r ended For the year ended 
31st March 2024 31 s t March 2023 

--·-·-·-·--------------------- ---------------------------------
.A.ccounting profit before tax from continuing operations 11 ,468.41 6,838.45 

------~--- ----------
,!,ccounting profit before income tax 11 ,468.41 6, 838.45 

i'.t India's statutory Income Tax rate of 25.17%* 
(31 March 2023: 25.17% ) 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible 
(taxable} in calcu lating taxable income 
Deferred Tax Adjustment 
Taxes of earlier years 

At the effect ive inc ome tax rate 

lr.come tax expense repo rted in the statement of profi t 
<;nd loss (cel;;: ting to con tinuing operations) 

Effer; ti ve i n c ome~ tax rate 

3,526 .37 . 2,019.39 

3,526.37 2,0 'i9 .3 9 

3,526 .37 2,019.39 

··. 3,526.37 2, 019.39 

The Company opted for new tax reg ime u/s 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 196 '1 for FY 2020-21 and 
onwards 

2? Components o f Other Com prehensive Income (OCI ) 

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is show;1 below: -
{I NR in Lak hs) 

- -----------'-
Particu lars 

- ------------------·-· --------
f-~emeasurement of Defined benefit plans 

rax impact on Remeasurernent of Defined benefit plans 

Fo r the year ended 
31st March 2024 

051 

2.53 

(0.64) 

1.89 

For the year ended 
31 st l'vl<!rch 2023 

'i .51 

(0.38) 

1.13 
-----------------
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Harida~\pur PoradzjJ Railway Company Lilnited 
CIN U452030R2006PLC008959 
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statement fo r the year ended March 31, 2024 

28 Earnings per share (EPS) 

Particulars 

Basic EPS 
From continu ing operation 
From discontinuing operation 

Di!uted EPS 
From continuing operation 

From dissontinuing operation 

28.1 Basic Earning Per Share 

For the year ended 
31st March 2024 

0.61 

0 .61 

In INR) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

0.37 

0.37 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic ea rnings per share: -
(INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2024 

---------------
Profit atb butable to equity holders of the company: 
Continuing operations 
Discon tinued operation 

Earnings used in calculation of Basic Earning Per Share 

'iVeightecl aver:1ge number of shares fo r the purpose of 
basic earnings per share (in lakhs) 

7,942.04 

7,942.04 

13,000.00 

For the year ended 
31stMarch 20 ~~3 

4 ,819.06 

4,819.06 

13,000.00 

*The weighted aversge number of sha res take into account th e weighted average effect of cl1anges in treasury 
sh<.lre tr8nsar:tions during the year. 

28.2 Diluted Ea rn ing per Share 

The earnings and we ighted average number of equity shares used in ca lculation of diluted earni ng per share: 
(!NR in Lakhs) 

---'--
Parti cul ars For the year ended 

31st March 2024 
For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

-----------·-------------- --- ------
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company: 
Continuing operations 
Discontin uing operations 

Earnings used in calculation of di luted Earn ing Per 
Share from continu ing operations 

7,942 .04 4,819.06 

7,942 .04 4,819.06 

------------

The weigh tet~ number of equity shares for the purpose of di!uted earning per share reconciles to the weighted 
average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic earning per share as fo llows : 

lp;~~---------

1 Weighted average number of Equity shares used in 
1 ca lculat ion of basic earn ings per share 

Effect of dilution : 
Share Options 
Share Application rnoney peilding allotment 

For the year ended 
31st March 2024 

----
13,000.00 

1 Weighted average number of Equity shares used in 
~alcu!ati on of ~_!_eel earnings per sh_are ___ _ 

052 

13,000.00 
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flaridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CII\J U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

29 Disclosure of lnd AS 115 " Revenue from Contracts with Customers " 

29.1 Servic.e Concession arrangements 

Publ.ic-to-private service concession arrangements are recorded according to Appendix "D" Service Concession 
Arrangements" IND,AS-115. Appendix "D" Service Concession Arrangements applies if: 

a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure , to whom 
it must provide them , and at what price; and 

b) The grantor controls through ownership, beneficia l entitlement, or otherwise any sign ificant residual intere st 
in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement. 

If both of the above conditions are met simultaneously, an intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the 
operator receives the right to charge users of the public service, provided that these charges am conditional 
on the degree to which the service is used . 

. These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, wh ich is understood as the fair value of the service 
provided plus other direct costs directly attributable to the operation . They are then amortized over the term of the 
concession . 

The company received the mandate to develop, finance, design , engineer, procure, construct and operate & 
maintain Haridaspur Paradip new railway line project under a Concession Agreement with the Ministry of Railways 
(MoR) signed on 20th December 2007. The agreement also defines rights and obligation of the Company and 
MoR. 

The concession period is based on achieving an NPV payback benchmark with a 14% rate of return. It will iast 
for 30 years of operation or until the NPV payback equals the equ ity investment, whichever comes first. If the NPV 
payback is reached before 30 years , the concession agreement wil l terminate, and the railway wi ll repossess the 
project line. 

At the end of the concession period, HPRCL will hand over the project assets to MOR. Additionally, any new land 
acquired by MOR and financed by HPRCL will also revert back to MOR. HPRCL will be entitled to receive an 
<mwunt equal to the cost of acquiring the land. 

In terrns of the above agreement upon expiry of 30 years of opera tion the concession period shall be extended 
O'J an equal period of time which corresponds to the period for whicll materia! disruption of operation and 
mainter.ance occurred during the concession period . However, such extension wil l be limited to provision that if 
NPV payback equal to equity investment is reached earlier then the period so extended. the concession perioci 
would stand terminated. 

In case of material breach in terms of the agreement the MORand HPRCL both have the right to terminate the 
agreement if they are not able to cure the event of default in accordance with such agreement. As per te rms of 
concession, in case fresh concess ion is issued first preference shall be given to company for same·. 

For the year ended 31st March 2024, the company recognized revenue of INR2,875.27 lakl1s (INR7, 144.61 lakhs 
for the year ended 31st March 2023) in accordance with th e provisions of the service concession arrangement. 
The company has not recogn ised any profi t from the construction of intangible assets under this arrangement. 
The revenue recognized for the construction of intangible assets during the year ending 31st March 2024 aligns 
with the service concession arrangement provisions. 

Additionaliy, the company recognized reven ue of INR45,745. 13 lakhs from the operation of the rai lway line during 
F.Y. 2023-24 (I~~R 35,055.8? lakhs for F Y 2022-23) . 

The company also recognized a receivable under the service concession arrangement, measured at amortized 
cost, ofiNR 1,383.16 lakhs as of 31st March 2024 (INR 1 ,257 .17 lakhs as of 31st March 2023) . This amount 
represents the present value of the fresh land acqu ired by MOR and leased to HPRCL, which is recoverable by 
HPRCL at the end of the concession period from MOR. 
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lfaridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

29.2 Disaggregation Of Revenue 

Particulars 

{INR in Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------
Construction Contract Revenue under SCA 
Income from Railway Operation 

2,875.27 7 ,144.61 
45 ,745.13 35 ,055.82 

48 ,6 20.40 42,200.43 
- ----

Contract balances 

Particulars 

Trade rece ivables 
Contract assets 

Contract liabiiities 

Contract Assets 
--------- --------

Particulars 

-------- ----'-----
Contract 1\sset at the beginn ing of the year 
Transfer from Contract Asset to Trade Receivable 

For the year ended 
31st March 2024 

14,904.74 

{INR in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

6 ,978 .36 

(INR in Lakhs) 
----------------· ··- ----

For the year ended 
31st March 2024 

For the year ended 
31st March 2023 

and increase as a resuit of changes in measure of progress 
Contract Asset at the end of the year 

~_ontr."!.<;t Liabilities (! NR in Lc'~th s ) 
-·· --- ---- ·------- -- --------·--·---------------------------------·-------------------- - ---

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

Contract l. iat: ilities at the beginning of the year 
Transfer from Contract Liabil ities to Revenue and 
increas': iiS a result of changes in rneasure of progress 
Con tract Liab ilities at the end of the year 

31st March 2024 3 'lsi March 7.023 

There was no. revenue recogn ized in the cu rrent reporting period tha t .-e lated to performance ob ligat ions thai 
were s2tisfied in a prior year. 

29.3 Construction Contracts 

In te rms of the disclcsure required in INO AS-115 "Construc tion Contracts" as notified in the companies 
(Accouriting Standard) rules 2018 , the a_rnount considered in the financial statements up to the bal3nce st1eet 

date am as follows :- {lt-JR in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Contract revenue recogn ised 

Aggreg<1te amount of costs incurred and 
recognized in profit!L.oss 

<· 

For the year ended 
31st March 2024 

2 ,875.27 

2,875.27 

054 

For the year endtlri 
31st March 2023 

7,144.61 

7,144.61 
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Flaridaspur Puradip Railway Company Lim,ited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

30 Capital management 
The company's objective is to manage iis capita l effectively to ensure its ability to continue as a going concern. 
This allows the company to provide maximum retu rns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders . 

Additionally, the company actively manages its capital structure to adapt to changing economic conditions and 
meet financia l covenant requirements. By maintaining an optimal debt-to-equity ratio, the company aims to 
minimize the cost of capital while ensuring the financial viability of its projects. The company's debt represents 
the Rupee term loan availed from M/s UCO Bank under a sole lending arrangement. 

Particulars 

Borrowing (Note No. 14) 

Net debt 

Eq uity (Note No. 12) 
Other equity (Note No. 13) 

Total e4uity 

Net Debt to equity ratio 

31-Mar-24 

'1,13,202.89 

1 '13,202.89 

1 ,30 ,000.00 
17,031 .28 

1,47,031.28 

43:57 

(INR in Lakhs) 

31 -Mar-23 

1 ,20,002 .89 

1,20,002.89 

1 ,30,000.00 
9,087 .35 

1,39,087.35 

46:54 

No changes were made in t11e objectives, policies or processes for managing capita l during the period ended 31st 
March 2024. 

31 Financial Instruments 

(i) Finan0ial Instruments by Category 

Particulars 

Financia l Assets 
(ilTreide Receivables (Net) 
(;i) C<Jsh and Cash Eq.uiva lents 
(i i1 ) Bank ba lances other than (i) above 
(iv) Receivable from Railways under SCA 
(v) Security Deposits 
(vi) Others 

Total Financia l Assets 

Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Lease Liabil ities 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

FVTPLI 
FVTOCI 

(l f\I R in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

31st March 2024 31st March 2023 · 

Amorti sed 
Cost 

FVTPLI 
FVTOCI 

Amorti sed 
Cost 

14,904."14 6,978.~~6 

6.046.03 4,220.84 
6,010.00 7,068.80 
1,383.16 1,257.17 

14.63 13.38 
180 09 135.86 

----------------------------- - .. ---
28,538 .65 19,674.41 

------------------·-------------

1 '13,202 .89 
17.59 

22 .91 

1 '13,243.39 

'i ,20,002.89 
42.37 

1,101.80 

1,21,147.06 
--·------- ------------· 

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value (but fair value disclosure are 
required) (INR in Lakhs) 

-----~--------

Particula rs As at As at 

31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

Carry ing 
Value 

Fair 
value 

Carrying 
Value 

Fair 
value 

--------------·---------·-------.. ---·-------------
Financia l Asse ts 
Receivable lrom railways under SCI-\ 
Security Deposits 

Tota l Financial Assets 

1,333.16 
14.63 

1,383 .16 
14.63 ---

1,397.79 1,397.79 

055 

'1 ,257.17 1,257.17 
13.33 13.38 

1,270.55 1,270.55 



f{aridaspur Paraclz~o Railway Company Lim.ited 
CIN : U452030R2006PLCOC8959 
W"4'"Tz=m ..... 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

i) The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and other short-term receivables and payables are 
considered to the same as their fair va lues, due to short term nature. 

ii) Long term variable rate borrowings are evaluated by company on parameters such as interest rates , specific 
country risk factors and other risk factors . Based on this evaluation the fair value of such payables are not 
materially different from their carrying amount. 

iii) The fair value of receivables from rai lways under service concession arrangement were calculated based on 
cash fl ows discounted using weigh ted average lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in fair 
value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs includ ing counterparty credit risk. 

Fair Value hierarchy as on 31 -03-2024 

Particulars 

Financial Assets 
Financial assets at Amortised Cost 
Receivable from railways under SCA 

Security Deposits 

Fair Value hierarchy as on 31-03-2023 

Particulars 

Financial Assets 
Financial assets at Amortised Cost 
F~eceiva ble from railways under SCA 
Security Deposits 

(i ii ) Financia l risk management 

-----
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Total 

1,383.16 1,383.16 

14.63 14.63 

1,397.79 1,397.79 
-----------·-------- --------·--·-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

1,257.17 

13.38 --- ---
1,270.55 

(INR in Lakhs ) 

Total 

1,257 .17 

13.38 

1,270.55 
---

The Company's princip2l financial liabiliiies comprises Rupee Term Loan from bank. The main pmpose of 
these financial liabil ities is to finance the company's project. The Company's p6ncipa l financi al assets include 
cash and cash equivalents and other receivables that derive directly from its operations. 

The Company is expose to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk . The company financial risk acti•Jities are 
governed by appropriated po'licies and procedures and that financial risk are identified, m23sured <:nd 
managed in accordr.mce with the company's policies and risk objectives . The board of directors reviews and 
agrees policies for managing each of these risk , which are summarised below:-

a) Market Risk 

l'vlarket ri sk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market 
risk includes deposits and other non-derivative financial instruments. 

b) Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of change in market interesr rate . The company exposu re to the risk of changes in market interest rate 
relates primarily to the investments of surplus fund into bank deposits and borrowings fmm bank. The 
company manages its interest risk in accordance with the company's pol icies and risk objective. 

c) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financiaL ioss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrum~nl 

fails to meet. its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from .others. 
The company is exposed to credit risk from its financial activities including . deposits with banks, financial 
institutions and other financial instruments . 

Page 32 cf 44 
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Financial instruments and cash deposits 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the company's policy. 
Investment of surplus are made only with approved counterparty on the basis of the financial quotes received from 
the counterparty . 

d) Liquidity risk 

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rest with the board of directors the company manages 
maintaining adequate banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by 
matching the maturities of financial liabilities 

32 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future , and the key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities with next financial year. 

a) Fair valuation measurement and valuation process 

The fa ir values of financial assets and financial liabilities is measured tt1e valuation techniques including the 
DCF model. The inputs to this method are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this 
is not feasible, a degree of judgement is requ ired in establishing fair values. Judgments include 
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk , credit risk and volatility . Changes in assumptions about these 
fa ctors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 31 for further disclosures. 

b) Useful lives of Property, Plant & Equipment 

As described in note 2 .6, Useful life of property plant and equipment are based on a number of factors 
insluding the effects of obsolesces , demand, competition , in terna l assessment of user experience and other 
economic factors and level of maintenance expenditure required to obtain the expected future cash flows 
from the asset. The Company reviews the useful life of property. plant and equipment ai each reporting date. 

c) Useful life of Intangib le Assets 

A.s described in note 2.7 , company has estimated the useful live of intangible assets (Intangible under service 
co11ccssion arrangement) is 30 years for amortisation of intangible assets , As per service concession 
arrangement if NPV payback equal to equity in·Jestment @14 % is reacl1ed earlier than 30 years , the 
concession agreement would stand terminated and the project line would be repossessed by railway. 

d) Taxes 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax !osses to the exten t it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which tax assets can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to 
determine the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognised , based upon the likely timing and level 
of future taxable profit together with future tax planning strategies. · 

e)Revenue Recognition 

The Company recognizes revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time after reasonably 
estimating its progress towards complete satisfaction of 11'1e performance obligation . 

33 Leases Disclosures 

Company-As a Lessee 

Minis try of Railway (lessor) has leased all the existing assets as per concession agreement and m:y land to be 
newly acqli ired for the project to company (Lessee) for the duration of Concession Agreement i.e., 30 years or on 
to attainment of the Net Present Va lue (NPV) payback equai to equity investment @14% whichever is earlier. 

Leased Assets from East Coast Railways 

East Coast Railway (lessor) has leased the existing assets as per concession agreement andt he land to be newly 
acqui red wilt) a! l rights, easements for the projec:t to the company (lessee) for the duration of concession 
agreement. 

Company shall p.:1y to the lessor, an annual lease ren tal of INR.1/- p.f-1. in case of new land aGquired by East 
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Coast Railway and as per extant policy of the Ministry of Railways (as revised from time to time) for the original 
land of Railway, which shall be payable in advance in the first week of January every yea r . Upon exp iry, the 
Company is required to hand over the leased assets to Ministry of Railways (MaR) free form all encumbrances 
whatsoever. If the concession period is extended/renewed beyond concess ion period, the lease agreement 
shall also to be extended/renewed at terms to be mutually decided by the part ies. 

The Company has taken lease assets from Ministry of Railways under non-cancellable lease. As rent payable is 
dependent on the extant policy of Ministry of Railways which changes from time to time, therefore it is not possible 
for the company to determine and present the future minimum lease rentals payable. Therefore Company does 
not have any impact of leases assets from East Coast Railways due to adoption of the lnd AS-116 leases. 

Other Leased Assets 

(i) Company has taken its office on the lease for period of the 3 years during the F.Y 2021 -22 . License fees agreed 
to be paid during the lease period is Rs. 40/- + 18% GST per sqft on total area of 6,046 sqft. per month shall be 
escalated @ 15% after every 3 year. 

(ii) Movement in Right of use assets-Building (INR in Lakhs) 
' 
L!'articulars ____ _ 

[_Qp_ening Balance as to the beginning of the year 

As at 31 st March 2024 As at 31 st March 2023 

37.67 60.27 

i Additions during the year - -

J Depreciatian charge during the year _ 22 .60 22.60 
- -----·-

1 Adjustments - -

[closi~~fJ. Balance as on the end of the year 
---· 

15.07 37.67 

(iii) Movement in Lease Liability (1~_'3_in Lakhs) 

t~:~;;.,-'n""_os~t~~ l>e~!!_of_t~'_J As at 31" ~::_;_~- -~: ~1 :~ Ma~:-~~~-- ~ 
I Acl d1t1ons clunng the year j 1 
~ -----------------·-----· -·------ ---- --------------------l 
~~c~;;~;e~:;~!c~~,;~: ~:::,;::., mh o"lflow fm tl (2940~~ -- ---------------(;:960:~ - I 

. the leases , . 
1------··--··---------··--------------- - - --------- ----l------··-·-----------------l I :~~:~::~,:Gain on leases _ l-~ : I_ ----~ -i 
L C l os in Q~~a_nce as on the en~~-thc yea_r:_-=[ _______________ 17.59 _ _L_________ 42.38 I 

(iv) Lease Liabilities are presented in the Balance sheet are as follows: - (INR in Lakhs) 

~
Partl~~;:;;s As at 31'~Macch 2024 1 As at 31" Macch 2023 --; - -------------------- --------- -------- -------------- ---
Current 17 59 24.79 ------ --- --------------~ 

Non-CUirent - 17.59 
------- - -

L Total 17.59 42.38 

(v) As at 31st March 2024, ihe Company has not committed to any leases which has not been yet ccrnmenced . 

(vi) The Company has elected not to recognize a lease liabi lity for short term leases of leases of low value assets. 
Expenses related to this leases are not included in the measurement of the lease liability. Details of the same are 
as fol!ows:-

(vii) Interest expenses in relation to leasing activities refer Note-23. 
·~ · 
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(viii) Expenses related to the variable lease payments are Nil. 

(ix) Income from subleasing of the right of use assets is Ni l. 

(x) Gain/loss from sale and leaseback transactions is not applicab le to the Company. 

(xi) Maturity profile of the leases on undiscounted basis as on 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 are as 
follows:-

As on 31"1 March 2024 

Particulars 

Lease Liability 

Total 

As on 31'1 March 2023 

Particulars 

Less than 1 years 1-5 year 

17.59 

17.59 I 

Less than 1 years 1-5 year 

29.03 

(INR in Lakhs) 

More than 5 years 

- -

- -
(INR in Lakhs) 

More than 5 years 

19.35 - l Lease Liability 

Total 29.03 19.35 - ~ --

34 Post refinancing , the Company has availed the Rupee Term Loan to part finance the project from M/s UCO Bank 
under sole lending arrangement and documents to thi s effect which stipu lates terms & conditions (including the 
security and charg e) were executed on 18th October 2021, as amended from time to time. 

During F.Y. 2023-24, the Company prepaid an amount of INR6 ,800.00 Lakhs (Ni l during F.Y. 2022-23) and the 
outstanding cred it facilities as on 31st March 2024 is INR1 , 13,202 .89 Lakhs (INR1 ,20,002.89 lakhs as on 31 st 
March 2023) . 

35 Commitments 

A- Capital Commitments 

Estimated amount of works remain ing to be executed on Capi tal Account (based Oil EPC cost) and not 
provided for: 

Haridaspur Paradip BG Rail Link- Nil (INR2"7.32 Crores as Oil 31st March 2023). 

Dhanmandai-Chand ikhol Rail Link- INR 147.93 Crores (INR149 .62 Crores as on 31st March 2023) 

8- Other Commitments 

Nil (Previous Year Nil) 

36 Related Party Disclosures 

36.1 As Required by IND AS - 24 "Related Party Disclosure", details of related parties are : 

( No. of sha res in Lakhs ) ··--·----- --- ·- ~-------· 

As at 31st March'2024 As at 31st March'2023 

Name of Party Relationship Number of 
%holding in 

Number of 
%holding in 

shares held 
that class of 

shares held 
that class of 

shares shares -------- --------
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited [RVNL] Shareholder 3,900.00 30.00% 3,900.00 30.00% 

Sagarmala Development 
Shareholder 3,367 .88 25.91 % 3,367.88 25 .91 % 

Company Limited [SDCL] 

Government of Odisha [GoO] Shareholder 2,377 .93 18.29% 2,377 .93 18.29% 

Parad ip Port Authority [PPA] Shareholder 1,385 .21 10.66% 1,385.21 10.66% 

Od isha Mining Corporation 
Shareholder 1,099.98 8.46% 1,099.98 8.46% 

l.im ited [OMCJ 
Odisha Industrial Infrastructure 

Shareholder 19.00 0.15% 19.00 0 ."1 5% 
Development Corporation [lOCO] 

t~ · 
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Board of Directors of the Company 
Name 

Smt. Seerna Kumar ( upto 10.05.2023) 
Shri Chhatrasai Singh ( w.e.f. 11 .05.2023) 
Shri . Debaraj Panda 
Sl1ri. Gurudas Brahma ( upto 28 .1 1.2023) 
Smt. Gitanjali Mishra ( upto 28.11.2023) 
Sl1ri . Mritunjay Pratap Singh 
Shri. Saroj Kanta Patra 
Shri . Anurag 
Shri . Dilip Kumar Gupta 
Shri. Ananga Charan Nayak ( w.e. f. 12.04.2023) 
Shri . Sanjay Kumar Mishra 
Shri. Saroj Kurnar Sethi ( w.e.f. 04. "12.2023) 
Shri. Manoranjan Mallick ( upto 06.11.2023) 
Shri . Polarnraju Laksl~mi Haranadh 
Shri . 8ana Bih:Jri Pani ( w.e.f. 1 0.01.2024) 
Shri . Satyilj it Mohanty ( upto 31 .12.2023) 

~~ Man_~g~~nent Personnel 
Name 

Shri . Debaraj Panda 
Shri . Navin J\garwal 
Shri . Sush2nt Kumar Satapathy 

Position 
Chairman 
Chairman 

Managing Director 
Independent Director 

Independent Women Director 
Nominee Director/ RVNL 
Nominee Director/ RVNL 
Nominee Director/ RVNL 
Nominee Director/ SDCL 
Nominee Director/ SDCL 
Nominee Director/ GoO 
f'-Jom inee Director/ GoO 
Nominee Director/ GoO 
Nominee Director/ PPT 
Nominee Director/ OMC 
Nominee Director/ OMC 

_ _ ___________ P__;o:....::sition 
Managing Director 

Chief Financial Officer 
Company Secretary 

36.2 Transaction with parties having significant influence 

Particulars Transactions # 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Advance on the party 

For Period ended For Period ended For Period ended For Period ended 
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 31st March 2024 31 st March 2023 

RVNL. 
Project Expe:1diture ;nc:uding 
DB, G. sePtices for maintenance 
ex:)enditure, etc 

#Excludes GST 

3,940.22 

Petaiis cf transaction entered related to shares 

7,144.6"1 

Name of the party Share to be Amou nt received/ Share Allotted 
allotted as at Adjusted during the year 

- ----·-··-··-----·-· _01_:Q_~_1_~_c!_l!_ring_~rio_d _ __ _ 
GoO 23,779 .31 NIL 

(23,779.31) NIL 
lOCO 190.00 !'JIL 

(190 .00) NIL 
OMC 10,99977 . NIL. 

(10,999.77) NIL 
PPA .13,S52 1·1 NIL 

(13,852 .11) NIL 
R\/i'JL 39,000 .00 NIL 

(39,000 .00) NIL 
SDCL 33 .678 .8"1 NIL 

3,096.1?. 

Share to be 
allotted as at 

31st March 2024 
NIL NIL 
NIL. NIL 
NIL NIL 
NIL NIL 
NIL f'l; \j,_ 

NIL NIL 
NIL NIL 
NIL NI L 
NIL N! i_ 
N!L Nli_ 
NIL NIL 
Nil NIL (33,678 .81) t--Ill ---- _____ __;__;_ . -----------------------------------

(Figures in brackets denote compara tive fig ures of prev ious year.) 

4,326 .51 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Share 
Allotted t ili 

31st March 2024 
-- 23,779.31 
(23, 779.31) 

190.00 
(190.00) 

10,999.77 
(10,999.77) 

13,852.11 
(13,852 .11) 

39,000.00 
(39,000.00) 
33 , 678.8~ 

(33,678.81 ) . 

_ Det~ ils of !_nterim Dividend paid _____ ______ --------·----~~~khs) 
Name ~f_::._a!_ty__ __ Relations~p ___ _ __ _ ____r~~!"'~_cjed 31 . 03.20?~- _ Year ended 31.03:.?_023 ___ _ 
RVNL Shareholder 468.00 
SDCL Shareholder 404 .15 
GoO Shareholder 285.35 
PP J\ Shareholder 166.23 
OMC •· ......-- _ Sl1areholder 132.00 
lOCO ~ ~ 'l A~ J)ll?reholder 

~~ ~J!~.aw.,.~~~ ~--iZIJV!'J ,.. __ ..._. !t'if1... ...~\U.~i12':~W41Sl'2'CJtt"-.-&fr ~:.c:~~~~~.t'.:.~'WA ~~ 11'-J.:.:JI!.\t.s.:Ait:~t,,;:.}.CiP.~ r.='..."':S'lf:!t?'l/t:11'~>Nilr.3Jii 
Cl. . \ _(..; \ . \ . 
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36.3 Compensation of Key Management Personnel (KMP) - Refer note 36.1 

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel during the year was as 

fo llows: {INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Short-term benefits 
Post-employment benefi ts 
Other long-term benefits 

For the year ended For the year ended 
3'1st March 2024 31st March 2023 

--------------------------
106.21 110.49 

8.79 8.99 
13.93 8.88 

128.93 128.36 

37 Con tin gent Liabili ties (Claims not acknowledged as debts by the company) 

ill Land : Landowners (from whom land was purchased) have filed various cases from time to time for 
enhanced compensation. The amount of claims pending as at year-end is not quantifiable 

!.ill Income ·r ax: 
__ _L(I ;..:.N:...Rc in Lakhs) 

(in Lakhs) I 
--p~-riod __ l ____ AmountiForum Pen0 ing Status ~1 

A.Y. 2013-14 41.00 Principal CIT M atter is pending wi t h PCIT. 

--·- ---- (41 .00) --tA . 

1 

A.Y. 2014-15 158. 35 CIT (Appea ls) Joppea l has been fil ed aga inst Assess ing 1 

I. ______________ -----~1ss ·~~---- -~f:~~~;·~ _ ~~~;: ;~~~;~~~-~~~-:_:~~~~~-~-:_s ___ , 
~ - ~-·-Y~:~7-18 L __ j~~:~~) _ CIT (Appea ls) M atter is pend ing w~t~~~~~~~~:-a l ~~------- --' 
( Fig ~ res in brockcts denote previous year figures.) 

.i.illl Claim of M/s RVN L 
A sum of II'IR2,986.45 lakhs (I NR4,424.12 Lakhs upto 31st March 2023) towards interest and other charges 
demanded by M/s RVN L is not acknowledged as debt by the Company. 

38 Impairment of Assets 

On the basis of review, the management is of the opinion that there is no impairment of any assets as on the 
B al a nc~; Sheet date. 

39 Au dit Fees & Expenses fo r the F.Y. 2023-24 includes as follows : 
(I NR in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

(i) Statutory Aud it 

(ii) Tax Audit Fees 

----- ---------

--------- - - -----· 

(iii) Reimbursen~ent of expenses 

Total 

For the yea r ended 
31st March 2024 

2.4 1 

0.60 

for the year ended 
31st March 2023 

1.3 '1 

0.33 

-------------------- ---
3.01 1.64 
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40 Retirement Benefits/ Long Term employee benefits 
The su mmarized position of Post-employment benefits and long term employee benefits recognized in the 
statement of Profit & Loss and Balance Sheet are under:-

40.1 Economic Assumptions 
The principal assumptions are the discount rate & salary growth rate . The discount rate is generally based upon 
the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date relevant to currency of benefit payments 
ior a term that matches the liabil ities. Salary growth rate is company's long term best estimate as to sa lary 
increases & takes account of inflation , seniority, promotion, business plan, HR policy and other relevant factors 
on long term basis as provided in relevant accounting standard . These valuation assumptions are as follows :-. 

h~~~~~:~~~ing-~:e-----=~---- As at 31 s~-~:rch 2024 

~i) Future salary Increase 8.00 

As at 31 st Marcil 2023 

7. 38 
8.00 

~ 
I 

-----" 

40.2 Summary of results 

The tab le below shows a sum;nary of the key results of the report including past results as applicable . 

[

- ----··-· 
Sl. 
No. Assets I Liability 

----· ---------------

As at 31st March 2024 

Gratuity 
Liability 

Leave 
Liability 

(l f\I R in Lakhs) 
------------------

As at 31st March 2023 

Gratuity 
Liability 

Leave 
Liability 

a Present value of obligation 18.77 53 .36 17.96 39.53 
b Fair value of plan assets 
c Net assets I (l iai.J ility) recognized (18.77) (53.36) (17.96) (39.53) 

1 _ ____ i~ ~ ~~-~~ar. ~~-s lle_e~as_!l~ovi~~--------------------------------------__:· __ ___________ _j 

40 .3 Ch3 nge in Benefit Obligation (!NR in Lakhs) .,-s(.' -----------------------
NI). Part iculars 

____ -~~ at~2st_~-arch2024_~-===- A"S_=a!_-~1-~!.~~cl~3~_2~--~=~-~ 
Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave i 

I . 
1----

1 

a) Present value of obligati on as at 
tt1e beginning of the peri od 

I 
b) Acq uisi!ion adjustment 
c) Interest Cost 

I 
d) Service Cost 

I 
e) Past Service Cost including 
curtai lment Gains/Losses 
t) Benef;ts Paid 

I g) Total Actuarial (Gain)/L.oss on 

I 

Obligation · 
. 11 ) Present value of obligati on as at 
~~he End of the period 

40.4 Balance Sheet and related analysis 

Liability Liability Liability Liab ility t 

----------1 
17.96 39.53 16.14 31 .03 

1.32 
2.02 

(2 .53) 

18.77 

2.92 
9.0'1 

1.84 

53.36 

1.16 
2.17 

(1.51) 

17.96 

2.23 
8.1 2 

(1 .85) 

39.53 I 
~~-·_j 
(INR in Lakhs) 

': 'No- _ P•rtLcula<S ·------ ~~:;,::~ ,~~~~~~~~[ ~ _ ~~f~~1~~;-l' 
a Present value of ob!igat1on at end 18 77 53 36 17.96 39 53 

I 
o Fa1r value ot plan assets - - - -
c IJ;1funded Liabi lity/provision 1n (18.77) (53.36) (17.96} (39.53) ! 

I Balance She2t J 
~--·-··"-- --·-----·-.------- -·--·------- ----- -----------------------

,.6\~ Re,,~ 
~ ~ ~- . 

- / 
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40 .5 Bifurcation of PBO at the end of yea r in current and non-current. 

Sl. 
i'Jo. Particulars 

As at 31st March 2024 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March 2023 

Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave 
Liability Liability Liability Liability 

~-------------------------------------------------------------------
a) Current liabi li ty 

(Amount due within one year) 
b) Non-Current liabil ity 

(Amount due over one year) 
----------------

40.6 Actuarial Gain/Loss on Obligation 

I

, Sl. 

No. 

I 

Particulars 

0.39 1.25 0 .49 11 .16 

18.37 52.11 17.47 28.38 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave 
Liability Liability Liability Liabi lity 

I 

I 
- I ~~)Actuaria i -(Gai n)/L.oss on arising from 

I
' Change in Demographic Assumption 

b) Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from 
Change in Financia l Assumption 

l
. c) Actuarial (Gai n)/L.oss on arising 

from Experience Adjustment 

0.64 

(3.17) 

40 .7 The amgunts recognized in the income statement. 

1.40 

0.43 

(0.53) (0. 96) 

(0.98) (0.89) 

(INH in Lakhs) 
rcr ---
1 Sl. As at 31st March 2C24 As at 31st March 2023 

Particulars I N'o ! .. 
j Gratuity 

1---------- _______ ------- ----·------------ Liability 
1 a) Totr.11 Service Cos! 2.02 
I 
· b) Net Interest Cost 

c) Net actuarial (gain) I loss recognized 
in the period 

I d) Expense recognized in the Income 

1_~ate~~r.!!_ _________ _ 

1.32 

3.34 

4G .8 Sensiti vi ty Analys is of the defined benefit obl igation . 
I' 
I a) Impact of the cha nge ir. d iscount rate 
I 
I 

Leave 
Liab ili ty 

9.07 

2.92 
1.84 

13.83 

Gratuity Leave I 
Liab ility Liability 

------2.tr-------------8~1i--j 
1.16 . 2.23 ' 

(1.85) i 
3.33 8.51 I 

(I NH in Lakhs) 

~- Gratuity r----"l.eav_e _ ___ i 

1-SI:N~Present Value of Obligation. at the end of the period 

I Liability Liability 

~~----18 l -7 -1-- -----53~-6 ---
1 I I 

I 

I 

a) 
b) 

impaci due to increase of 0. 50% 
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 

i b) Impact of the change in salary increase 

I 
Sl. No. Present Value of Obligation at the end of !he period 

a) Impact du·e to increase of 0.50% 
L __ li ___ Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 

(1.37) 
1.50 

18.77 

I (2 .98) I 
3.30 

I 53.36 II 

! 
, o.69 I 3.24 ~-

_L _______ (o ~5_l_L _ ___ (2_.9_8) _ 

Sensitiv1 lies due lo mortality & withdrawals are not materia l & hence impact of change due to these not 
calculated. 
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40.9 Maturity Profile of Def!ned Benefit Obligation 

Sl. 

No. Year 

a) Oto1Year 
b) 1 to 2 Year 
c) 2 to 3 Year 
d) 3to4Year 
e) 4 to 5 Year 
f) 5 to 6 Year 

__gl__§_ Year onwards 

40.10 Leave Trave l Concession 

Gratuity 
Liability 

0.39 
0.34 
0.33 
0.31 
0.31 
0.31 

16.77 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Leave 
Liability 

1.25 
0.42 
0.41 
0.40 
0.40 
0.38 

26.32 

(INR in Lakhs) (i) Economic Assumptions 

[ Pa;ticulars 
~~~~-c-ou_n_t_!!:!.g_ __ R_a_t_e_ 

~st Growth Rate 

-----------·--·---~ As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

7.09 7.13 

------'--- 5.00 5.00 

(ii) (INR in Lakhs) 

1- ti;~~-
S!~V~-~~ of obl igation as at t~~~ 

As at 31st March 2024 ~sat 31st March 2023 

d of period 5.44 4.47 
--------

(iii) Bifurcation of PBO at the end of year as per schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. 

(INR in_La_k_hs) __ 
I Sl. r~J Particulars -------- -----·- As at 31st Mar_c_h_2_0_2_4--r--'A- s_ a.....:.t 31_~1_!1l."<ch 2023 1 

a) l Current liability (Amount due within one year) 2. 72 1.45 ______ _)_ ---- -------
b) I Non-Current liability (Amount due over one year) 2 72 3.02 

~=~--=~~= -~~=~=====~===== ________ · __ Ji~44_]==~-=--~~~-~=-----~47 ---~ 
(iv) The table below shows a summary of the key results of the report includ ing past results as applicable. 

(INR in Lakhs) 

~L~~~~:~~~:~:~~~::~~~ --. -----~::=·~~t-~!l~t~~~p~ 
--c~ .. L ~~~~s::~~~~i:i~i~:~y) recogn1zed in balanc~ 1 (5.44) _L ________ (4 .. 47) J 

41 The company has only one reportable segment viz. operation of freight traffic. Therefore, requirement for 
segment ;eporting is not applicable . 

42 There are no reported Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small & Medium 
Enterprises Development Act 2006" to whom the company owes any amount. 

43 Application of lnAS on material items 

The Prior Period Items and changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively on account of materiality 
only in line with the provisions of Indian Accounting Standards. 

44 Contingent Assets 

In the absence of certainty and quantification of Interest receivable against the BGs of M/s HCIL Adhikarya and 
M/s IVRCL encashed by M/s RVNL, the Company has recognised the same under contingent assets. 

45 Expenditure incurred on employees who were in receipt of remunera tion in excess of the limits prescribed 
under .Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 - Nil. 

4G Other Disclosures as per Schedule Ill of Companies Act 2013 

Expenditure in Foreign Currency- Nil (Previous Year- Nil). 

Earnings in Foreign Currency .. Nil (Previous Yea1 -f\lil) 

The company has not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding the ir status under the Micro , Small and 
Medium Ente!'prises Development Aci 2006 as at the Balance Sheet dale and therefore no such disclosures 
under the said Act have been made . 

.. 
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1-Jarida.s]JUr Paradip Railway Com.pany Limited 
CJN: U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(i) The Company has made the disclosures at appropriates place regarding the relevant items or transactions of 
balance sheet and statement of profit and loss. Any non-disclosure is due to nonoccurrence of related 
transaction . 

47 Disclosures pursuant to amendment in Schedule Ill of the Companies Act 2013 : 

The MCA vide notification dated 24th March 2021 has amended Schedule Ill to the Companies Act. 2013 in respect 
of certain disclosures which are applicable from 1st April 2021 . The Company has incorporated the changes as per 
the said ·amendment in the financial statements and below disclosures are made in compliance of the said 
amendment: 

(i) The Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the period . 

(ii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the period. 

(iii) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against 
the company for holding any Benami property. 

(iv) The Company do not have any prior period errors to be disclosed separately in statement of changes in 
equity. 

(v) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC. 

(vi) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (Intermediari es) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall : 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(vii)The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies) , including foreign entities 
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the iike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

(viii) The Company does not have any loans and advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMP 
and other related parties . 

(ix) The Company has not reval ued any item of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets . 

(x) The Company does not have any transactions where the company has not used the borrowings from banks 
and financial insti tutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date 

(xi) The Company do not have any title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company. 

(xii) The Company does not have any investment property. 

(xiii) Company is not requi red to submit statement of current assets wi th the bank and therefore reconcil iation 
of the statement filed by the company with bank and the books of accounts is not appl icable. 

,:. 

Page 41 of 44 

065 



W* 

~ Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company. Limited 
CIN: U452030R2006PLC008959 -~,. .. IW!l _. 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(xiv) The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government 
or any government authority. 

(xv) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

(xvi) The Company have not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements during the financial year. 

(xvii) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 
subsequently surrendered or disclosed as income during the year as part of the ongoing tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961). 

(xviii) The following accounting ratios are disclosed· 
March 31, March 31, Reason for 

Particulars Numerator Denominator 2024 2023 %change change more 
than 25% 

Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 315.36 14.49 2076.40% Trade receivables 
increased as of March 
31 , 2024, mainly due to 
GST issues. 
Additional ly, no interim 
dividend was declared 
in 2023-24 , resulting in 
no dividend payable as 
of March 31, 2024 

-
Debt-equity Total Debt Shareholder's 0.77 0.86 (10.47%) 
ratio Equity -

Debt service Earnings for Debt service = 2.86 2.59 10.42% 
coverage debt service = Interest & Lease 

ratio Net profit after Payments+ -
taxes+ Non- Principal 

cash operating Repayments 
expenses 

Return on Net Profits Average Increase in traffic due to 
equity ratio after taxes - Shareholder's 0.06 0.04 50.00% 

demand of thermal coal , 
Preference Equity coking coal. Iron ore, 
Dividend etc. 

·--
Inventory Cost of goods Average Inventory 
turnover sold NA 

ratio -
Trade Increase in traffic due to 
receivables Sales Average Trade 4.18 5.63 (25 .75%) demand of thermal coal , 
turnover ratio Receivable coking coal. Iron ore , 

etc. - ----
Trade 

payable Purchases Average Trade NA 
turnover Payables 

ratio 
----·-·- ·· 

Net capital 
turnover Sales Working Capital 1.67 1.99 (16 .08%) -

ratio 

Net profit Net Profit Sales 0.17 0.14 21.43% -

ratio 
Return on Earn ings Increase in traffic due to 

capital before interest Capital Employed 0.08 0.06 33.33% demand of thermal coal , 

' 

employed and taxes coking coal. Iron ore ,~ 
etc. 

Return on 
investment -......... . -.... 

~,..,.,., .. ~~ 
, .. ~ j l 

A~ 
I g_ Bhubanoswar ~ 

I 
~ ~ i wp._--g~~ $__~ ~~--, f··~- a.-..:.~·-·····:,;;~;llli --~· :.lJCK 

\: .... ,. ·-~~ -, f-l it;~ 
<'~ ~~ ~~c;-~~ \JI 44 

. ~ 
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/' 1-!arida.spur Paradip Railway Company Limited 
CIN: U452030R2006PLC008959 ~ a·a;=r==z -----kCI:III ___ :JICCIMIII!~+&OIEIIM 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

48 Corporate Social Responsibility 

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 , a company, meeting the applicability threshold , needs t() spend 
atleast 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social 
responsibility (CSR) activities. In compliance with the requirements of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, 
the Company had constituted the CSR Committee and allocated budget for CSR Activities. 

(INR in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

a) Gross amount required to be spent 107.06 61.59 
by the Company during the year 

b) Amount approved by the Board to 107.06 61.59 
be spent during the year 

c) Amount spent during the year In Yet to be Total In Yet to be Total 
end ing on 31st March 2024: cash paid in cash paid in 

cash cash 

i) Construction/acquisition of any - - - - - -
asset 

ii) On purposes other than (i) above 107.06 - 107.06 - - -

d) Amount spent during the year In Yet to be Total In Yet to be Total 
ending on 31st March 2023: cash paid in cash paid in 

cash cash 
--- -

i) Construction/acquisition of any - - - - - -
asset -- ----
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 

--'---
61.59 - 61.59 - - -

e) Details related to spent I unspent As at 31"1 March 2024 As at 31"1 March 2023 
obligations: 

--------·------------
i) Contribution to Public Trust - -

f-'------------- -----------------
- --~i2 _g_?'2t!:i ~L~ion_~o Charitable Trust --- ----·- - -----·- ---··---·- ---·--------- --- ----·-

iii) Unspent amount in re la tion to : - -
------------------

- Ongoing project - -
-----

- Other than ongoing - -
______ project 

-
f) The total of previous years ' shortfall - -

amounts; 
--- -

g) The reason for above shortfalls by NA NA 
way of a note 

h) The nature of CSR activitiesundertaken by the Company. 

For F.Y. 2023-24 CSR amount was equally contributed to all the three districts namely, 

i) Jagatsinghpur i.e. INR20,00 ,000/- towards Mo School Abhiyan I Mo College Abhiyan Parichalana Sanghathan and 
INR 15,68,589/- towards Healthcare Initiatives (covered under CSR activities) . 

ii) Jajpur i.e . INR 35,68 ,589/- towards Mo School Abhiyan Parichalana Sanghathan (covered under CSR activities) . 

iii) Kendrapada i.e. INR35,68,589/- towards Transformation of Anganwadi Center into Model Anganwadi Centers 
(covered under CSR activities) in terms of provision contained in Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013. 

The Company has contributed the amount to all the three districts. The utilization certificates are awaited . 

I 

{Foe F.Y. 2022-23 CSR 'moont w" eq,lly contdboted to the th<ee dlotdct> n'mely Jag,tolnghpO<, J'jpO<, 'nd J 
Kenderapada under "MO SCHOOL ABHIYAN PARICHALANA SANGATHAN" in the Project Areas in terms of provision 

~[ltained in Schedule VII of Companies Ag,_1_013.)_ 
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( .. ·-~~ ,® I-laridaspur Paradtj? Railway Cmnpany Limited 

CIN: U452030R2006PLC008959 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

49 GST Disclosure 

Based on the recommendation of the 53rd GST Council, vide notification no 04/2024 dated 12th July 2024, GST 
on the services provided by Special Purpose Vehicles (SPV) to Indian Railway by way of allowing Indian Railway 
to use infrastructure built & owned by SPV during the concession period and maintenance services supplied by 
Indian Railways to SPV are exempted w.e.f. 15th July 2024. 

Further, vide Circular no. 228/22/2024-GST dated 15th July 2024, as recommended by the 53rd GST Council , 
GST on the supply of services by SPVS to Ministry of Railways (Indian Railways) by way of allowing it to use 
infrastructure built and owned by them during the concession period against consideration and maintenance 
services supplied by Ministry of Railways (Indian Railways) to SPVs in relation to such use of infrastructure built 
and owned by SPVS during the concession period against consideration is regularized for the period from 
01.07.2017 to 14.07.2024 on 'as is where is' basis. 

50 Obligation to Restore project assets to specified level of serviceability 

In terms of Concession agreement, there is an obligation on the Company to keep the project assets in working 
condition , including making replacement , as per laid down standards of MOR, of all project assets whose codal 
lives expire during the concession period Accordingly, Company is required to provide for in respect of replacement 
obligations arising during the remaining concession period as per requirement of Appendix D of the lnd AS 115 for 
best estimate of expenditure required to settle obligation . However, at present there , reliable estimate for restoration 
obligation is not available, therefore provision for same is not provided in financial statements, the same will be 
provided in the year in which estimate becomes reliable . 

51 Dividend 
Dividend paid/payable shall be recognised in the year in which the related dividends are approved by shareholders 
or board of directors as appropriates. 

The company has paid/payable interim dividend of Nil per equity share for the financial year 2023-24 (INR0.12 per 
equity share having face value of INR 10 each for the financial year 2022-23) 

------------------~~-----------(~1-N~Rinlakhs) 
~--~~~rt=ic-_~_;a_rs _____ -__ -__ -_-=---===~ r _e_a_r_E-nded 31 .03.2024 _Y_e_a_r_~~ded 31 .03.2023 I 

Gross Dividend Paid/ Payable _ 60 00 1,5 . 
rim) 
----- ------------------------

52 Approval of financial statement 

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directo rs on 121h Sept 2024. 
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To the Members of HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Ooinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone lnd AS financial statements of Haridaspur 
Paradip Railway Company Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 
3 i st March 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in E:quity c.md statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended on that date, and notes to the standalone f inancial statements and a summary of 
material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the 
"standalone financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesa id Standa lone lnd ASfinancial statements give the information requi reci by the 
Companies Act , 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair vit;w in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the ;\ct 

read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 , as amended, ('l nd 
AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India , of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 3 ·1st fv1c.1rch , 2024, and its profit , total comprehens ive income, changes in 
equity ;:md its cash flows for the year end c~d on that date. 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial state!llents in accordance with the 

Standards on Audit ing (SAs) , as specified under section 143( i 0) of the Companies Act 

.2013 . Our responsib iiities unds r those Standards are further described in the '/\ud iior's 
Responsibilities for the Audi t ui the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of ihe Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the 
institute of Charte red ;\ccou ntants of !ndia ("'CA/") together wit!l the ethical requ irements 

that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statemen ts under the prov;sions of 

the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made thereu nder, and we have fu iiilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requi rements anci the !CA l's Code of Eth ics. 

W e believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate io provide a 
basis for .our audit opinion on the Standalone financial statements. 

Emphas is of Matter (EOIVI) 

a). Withou t qual ifying our report, your attention is drawn to Note - 37(iii) of the st<:.mdalone 

fi nancial !>laternents , which describes th at an amount ot INR2986.45 lakhs as on 3i'1 

March , 2024 (i NR,~424. 12 Lakhs r:~s on 3151 March , 2023) towards interest and other 
charges c!airned by fVl/s 1-:;:VNL is not acknowledged as the debt by the company. 

b). CSR c :c pendi~u re for the 'rY: :W23-24 

The Company has contribu ted ::~ n arnount ~J f INR1,07 ,05,767/- (i n tota l) amon~J the 
11"1'e ·" d;st· ·,~ ~ ~ <)i.' ll e oro ;,, .. ,, . ,r · · ~ 't'~·"'· '8'J"-"·· tn' <> • •' ''' ·-· -, t: , ,~ r-e,·t··,f·,,... ., t., ·,"' a,,,.:.. ;ted --""" l ! ~:..... . ... I ·...., ~;::, l -;, J\· ~ t... ,:-.f t....C&. f Uv v :, \. . I , ,, -.Ald t/_c: I..Ji l ... , vL~o'-.. ~" \i:;oQ , .. . . 
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c) Woman Director: 

The second provision of Section 149(i) of the Act provides that following class of 
companies must appoint at least one-Woman Director on its Board. 

Every listed Comp3ny. 
Every Other public company having paid up share capital of Rs.1 00 · crore or 

more. 
Turnover of Rs.300 crore or more. 

Upon meeting the aforementioned criteria, a company is required to appoint a 
Woman Director to its board within six months from the date of fulfillment of these 
conditions. 

Smt. Gitanjali Mishra, lntendent Director of the company has ceased to be director 
w.e .f. 28th Nov,2023 on completion of her tenure. The Board is yet to fill the vacancy 
of woman director. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that , in our professiona l judgement, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 31 , 2024 . We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in 
our report . 

!nfQ!:.IJlation other than the financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon 

Tile Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of 
the ether informEl~ion. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Company's Annual RP.port, but does not include the Standalone fin ancial statements and 
auditor's report U1ereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon . 

In con nection with our audit of the Standalone financia: statements , our responsibility is to 
1·ead lhe other information and , in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated . 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information ; we are requi red to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard . 

Responsibi lities of Manaqement for the Standa!oneFinancial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 

Standalone financial statements that give a t1·ue and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance and cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India , includ ing tile 

Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) speci fied under section 133 of the Act read with 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Ru les . 2015 , as amended. This 
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with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities ; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies ; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records , relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone 
lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern , disclosing , as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so . 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibil ities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion . Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance , but is not a guarantee that an audit conduCted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material it, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also : 

m Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone lnd AS 

financia l statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks , and obta in audi t evidence that is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion , forgery , intentional omissions , 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances . Under section 143(3)(i) 

of the Companies Act , 2013, we are also respons ible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls . 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained , whether a material 
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the Company's ability to continue as a go1ng concern . If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists , we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 

to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion . Our conclusic·ns are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern . 

Evaluate the overall presentation , structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures , and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation . 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work ; and (ii) to evaluate the 
effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements . 

We communicate with those charged wi th governance regarding , among ether matters, 
the pl3nned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings , inclu d i !~g any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independen ce, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standa!one financial 
statements for the financial year ended 31 s• March , 2024 and are therefore the key audit 

matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 
preciLJdes public disclosure about the matter or when , in extremely rare circumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report becaL.se the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such commun ication. 

Report qn Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued 

by the Central Government of India in terms of.sub-section (11) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 , we give in the 'Annexure B', a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. ,A.s required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations w·hich to 

· the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

audit. 

b) In our opinion , proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so fa r as it appears from our examination of those books. 
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement 
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and 
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

books of accounts. 

d) In our opinion , the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act , read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a 

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 

to Standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls , refer to our separate Report in 'Annexure A'. 
Our report express an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's report in 
accordance with the requirements of Sec 197(16) of the Act as amended . 

In o~1r opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 
of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules , 2014, 
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us: 

' J, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its 
financial position in its lnd AS financial statements - Refer Note 37 to 
the lnd AS financ ial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

111. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

IV. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 

and belief, other that as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (eithei· from 

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kinds of 

funds) by Ihe company to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries") , with the understaqding , 
whether recorded in wri ting or otherwise, that the 

073 



shall , whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entit ies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no 
funds have been received by the company from any persons or 

enti ties, including foreign entities ("Funding parties"), with the 
understanding , whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall , whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (" Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficia ries and 

c) Based on the audit procedures as considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 
that may cause us to believe that the representations under the 
above sub-clauses (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement. 

v) As sta ted in Note.13.1 to the Standalone Financial Statements, the 
Boa rd of Directors of the Company has not proposed any interim 
dividend for the year. 

vi) The compa ny is using accounting software for maintaining its books of 
account for the financial year ended March , 31 st 2024 which has a 
feature of recording audit trail facil ity . Based on our examination which 

included test checks the same has been operated throughout the year 
for al l relevant transactions recorded in the aforesaid software. Further 
during the course of our audit, we have not come across any instance 
of audi t trail feature being tampered with . 

As pro•Jision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rule , 2014 is 
applicable from April , 1, 2023 reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the 

companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules , 2014 on preservation of audit 
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not 
applicable fo r the financial year ended March, 31 st 2024 . 

3. As requ ired by Section 143(5) of the Act, we give in "Annexure-C" , a statement on 
the matters speci fied in the Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor 

General of India in respect of the Company. 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Daie : 12th Sept 2024 
UDIN : :Z46bDS~~l.( f?,E"bt;<.=>-4...:\t 
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Annexure 'A' 

REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
theCompanies Act . 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HARIDASPUR 
PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31 , 2024 in 
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date . 

. Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India . These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adeq uate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors , the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as req uired under the Companies Act, 2013. 

,Auditors' f~esponsjbiiity 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's interna! f inancial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to these Standalone lnd As financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing , issued by I CAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(1 0) of the 
Comp:mies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls , both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comp ly with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporiing vvas 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all materia l respects . 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial contro ls system over financial reporting with reference to these 
Standalone lnd As financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting ,with reference to these Standalone lnd As 
financial statements assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, includ ing the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements , whether due to fraud or 
error. 

We believe that the audi l evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate io provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's :nternal financial controls over financial 

reporting 
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Meaning of Intern al Financial Controls Over Financial Report ing with Reference to these 
Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial control over financial report ing with reference to these 
Standalone lnd AS financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regard ing the reliabi lity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal f inancial control over financial reporting with reference to 
these Standalone lnd As financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 

1. perta in to th e maintenance of records that , in reasonable detai l, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transact ions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2. provide reason able assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of f inancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

3. provide reasonab le assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition , use, or disposit ion of the company's assets that could 

have a materia l effect on the f inancial statements. 

Inherent Limitation s of Intern al Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference 
to these Standalone lnd AS Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contro ls over financial reporting, with 
reference to these Standalone lnd As f inancial statements including the possibility of 
collu sion or improper management override of controls , material m isstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and noi be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over fi nancial reporting with reference to these Standalone lnd As financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financia l reporti ngwith reference to these Standalone I nd As financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the pol icies or procedu res may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Compa ny has, in a ll material respects, an adequate interna l financial 

contro ls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financ ial 
reporiing with reference to these Standalone I nd As f inancial statements were operating 

effective ly as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contro l stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of In ternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Insti tute of Chartered /-\ccou ntants of India . 

Place : Bhubaneswar 
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"ANNEXURE 8" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Report on Companies ( Auditor's Report ) order' 2020 ('the order') issued by 
Central government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Companies act 2013 ( 'the 
act') of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company Limited ('the Company') for the 

year ended 31 51 March , 2024 . 

We report that: 

(i) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative detai ls and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, 
Capital work-in-progress , investment properties and relevant details of right­
of-use assets; 

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets; 

(b) As explained to us and according to the information and explanation 
provided to us the Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by 
the management at reasonable intervals and there are; no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification and same have been 
properly dealt with in the books of account; 

(c) The Title Deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where 
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in 

favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are he!d in the 
name of the company. 

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the financial year. 

(e) As explained to us and according to the information and explanation provided to 
us, no proceed ings have been initiated or are pending against the company as 
at 31 51 March , 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prol1ibition) Act , 1988 (45 of 1988 and rules made thereunder) 

(ii) (a) The Company does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph (ii)(a) 
is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capita l limits during the 
year , from banks or financial institutions . Thus, paragraph (ii)(b) is not 

applicable to the Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us , the company has 
not made investments in , nor provided any guarantee or security or granted any 
loans or advances in the nature of loans,secured or unsecured , to companies , 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other pmties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) , (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon. 

(iv) In our opin ion and according to the information and explanations give 
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there are no loans, investments, guarantees , and securities given in respect 
of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are 

applicable and hence not commented upon . 

(v) According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has 
not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act 
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules , 2014 (as amended) . 

Accordingly , the provisions of clause 3(v) of the order are not applicable. 

(vi) As per the requirement under section 148(1) of Companies Act, 2013 the 

Central government has not prescribed for maintenance of the cost record 

for the Company. 

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employee's state insurance, income 
tax, sales tax, service tax , duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 
and any other statutory dues to the appropriateauthorities. 

According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of provident fund , Income Tax, duty of customs, 
Goods and services tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in c!rrears 
as on 31st of March , 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

(b) J\ccording to the information and explanations given to us, the disputed 
statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of disputes pending 

before authorities are as under: 

[----·-·---·-·------l-- -------,------;;---~~-----------~--------- - -- ---1 
N f St t 

Nature of the Amount Period to which the I Forum where 
arne o atu e · . . 

Dues (R.:; . In Lakhs) amount relates d1spute 1s pend1ng ---- ·- --. ---- -- ·--- -- ---- ---- - ---- .. ------ - ---- ----- - ... --- ------- -- ----- -

income Tax Act, 196 '1 Income Tax 41 .00 AY 2013-14 Principai CIT 

I nco me Tax Act, i 961 Income Tax 158.35 AY 2014-15 CIT (Appeals) 
---- ______ ,. ______________ --·---

78.09 AY 2017-- 18 CIT (Appeals) 
--- -- ____ i - -- ---- - ---- ----- -

Income Tax 
I 

Income Tax Act, 1961 
---- --- ---- -- -

(vii i) /\ccording to the information and explanations gi•Jen to us, there are no previously 
unrecorded income that are surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax 
assessments under ihe Income Tax Ac::t , 1961 during the year. 

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the 
management, in respect of borrowings. 

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings to a 
Bank or Government or dues to debenture holders. 

(b) The Company has not been declared vviilful defaulter by any Bank or financial 
institution or other lender; 

(c) In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they 
were raised . 

(d) The Company has not raised any short-term funds. Thus, paragraph (ix) (d) is 
not applicab le to the Company. 
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(e) The company has no subsidiaries , associates or joint ventures. Therefore, 
Thus, paragraph (ix)(e) is not applicable to the Company. 

(f) The company has no subsidiaries , associates or joint ventures . Therefore ,thus 
paragraph (ix)(f) is not applicable to the Company. 

(x) (a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the 
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the financial year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, 
partially or optionally convertible) during the year under review and hence, 
reporting requirements under clause 3(x)(b) are not applicable to the company 
and, not commented upon . 

(xi) Based upon the audit procedure performed for the purpose of reporting the true and 
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations 
given by the management, we report that; 

(a) No fraud/material fraud by the officers and employees by the company or any 
fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 
been filed by the auditors in Form r'\DT-4 as prescribed under rule13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules ,2014 with the Central Government; 

(c) No whistle-blower complaints have been received by the Company; 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore , clause (xii) is not applicable to the 
Company 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act 
2013,wilere applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone lnd AS 
financial statements, etc. ,as required bytheapplicableaccou nting standards; 

(xiv) (a) The company has an adequate Internal Audit System commensurate with the 
size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the Internal /i.udi t Reports for the year under audit, issued 
to the Company during the year. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with him during the year and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not 
applicable. 

(xvi) In our opinion anc.i based on our examination , the Company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 Hence 
reporting under clause (xvi) of the order are not applicable to the company. 

(xvii) Based on our examination , the company has nat incurred cash losses in the financial 
~-..... 

year and in the immed iately preceding f inancial year. 
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(xviii) There has been no res ignation of the statutory aud itors of the Company during the 
year. 

(xix) On the information obtained from the management and audit procedures performed 
and on the basis of the financial ratios , ageing and expected dates of realization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying 
the fi nancia l statements , our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans, we are of the op inion that no materia l uncertainty exists as on the date of the 
audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabi lit ies existing at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date; 

(xx) Though the Utilizat ion Certificates is awa ited, however, the Company has contributed 
an amount of INR1 07.06 lakhs towards Corporate Social Responsibility . Therefore , 
no amount is required to be transferred to a special account within a period of 30 
days from the end of the said financial year in compliance with the provision of 
Section 135(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 . 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date : 121h Sept 2024 , 
UDIN: ':tAt:> ~o 5'8-g..I?K.9t]:> B:lAL\f 
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Annexure-C to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial 
Statement 

On the directions issued by the Comptroller and Audit General of India under sub section 5 

of the Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 based on the verification of records of the 

company and information and explanations given to us, we report that: 
------------- '-------·-------, 

_Directions ~nder_J>~ctiQn 14~(~}_of Com~nies Act, 2013 -------------1 

Sl. 
No. -----

1 

2. 

Questions Auditor's Comments 

Wheth er the company has system in Yes, th e company is recording the 

place to process al l the accounting I accounting tra nsaction in IT system. The 

transactions through IT system? If , company is using Tally Prime Accounting 

yes , the implications of processing of Software. All the transactions are done 

accounting transactions outside IT through IT system only. No transaction is 

system on the integrity of the done outside IT system and hence no 

accounts along with the financial such impact on the integrity of the 

implications, if any, may be stated accounts. 
- -. - . ·-· --------··-----

Whether th ere is any restructuring of No such case of restructuring of an 

I an existing loan or cases of 
1 

existing loan or waiver/written of 

waiver/written of debts/loans/interest, debts/loans/interest, etc. made by the 

etc. made by a lender to the company lender to the company due to company's 

due to company's inability to repay the inability to repay the loans and hence the 

loans? If yes , the financial impact may clause is not applicable. 

i be stated. Whether such cases are t 

I properly accounted for? (In case , 

lender is a government company, then 

this direction is also applicable for 

statutory auditor of lender company) . I 
3. 

---- ·------ -- ---·-- ---------1--------------- - - ---1 

I 
Wh ether funds received/receivable for As per the information and explanations 

specific schemes from central/state provided to us, the company has not 

I government or its agencies were received/receivable any funds from 

I properly accounted for/utilized as per specific schemes from central/state 

its terms and conditions? List the government or its agencies. Hence, the 

'----' cases of devi~ti~~s . __ __ _ _ ____ __ J ~lau_:~ not ~~~ licab=------------' 

Place: Bhubaneswar 
Date : 12111 Sept 2024 
UOIN: ?.A.D6D!5'g-g ~ll.R,f:"~ ~-4t:" 
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER 
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF HARIDASPUR PARADIP RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 

The preparation of financial statements of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company 

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting 

framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and 

Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing 

opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent 

audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (1 0) of 

the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 12 

September 2024. 

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India , have conducted a 

supplementary audit of the financial statements of Haridaspur Paradip Railway Company 

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This 

supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working 

papers of the Statutory Auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor 

and Company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records . 

On the basis of my supplementary audit noth ing significant has come to my 

knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to Statutory 

Auditor's report under Section 143(6) (b) of the Act. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 3o.10.2024 
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